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L.

(a)

(b)

(e)

KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

Background information

The Communications Authority of Kenya was incorporated/ established in 1998 by an Act of
parliament through Kenya Information and Communications Act, 1998 (Cap 4114). The
Authority is domiciled in Kenya with its headquarters in CA Centre, Waiyaki Way and has

regional offices in Mombasa; Eldoret; Kisumu; and Nyeri.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Authority is facilitating the development of the information and
communications sectors including; broadcasting, cybersecurity,  multimedia,
telecommunications, electronic commerce, postal and courier services on behalf of the
Government of Kenya. The Vision of the Authority is; A Digitally Transformed Nation. Its
mission is “Building a connected society through enabling regulation, partnership and

innovation.

Key Management

The Authority’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
a) Board of Directors;
b) Director General; and

¢) Head of Departments and Divisions

ii
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30" June

2022 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

NBTe

_ Mr. Ezra Chiloba (appointed on 2 "
1. Director General ‘
September 2021)
Mrs. Mercy Wanjau, MBS (Acti: ¢
2 Head of Legal Services Director-General from 22" Ausust 2020
until 28" September 2021)
- . Mr. Christopher Wambua (Deployed to a
3: Head of Corporate Services _ )
speclal Assignment)
4. Ag. IHead of Corporate Services M/s. Patricia Muchiri 1
5, Head of Finance & Accounts CPA Joseph Kimanga i
0. Ag. Head of Procurement Mrs. Jane Rotich }
2 Head of Risk Mgt & Internal Audit CPA Rosalind Murithi il
8. Head of Human Capital & Administration Mr. Juma Kandie ]
9. Head of Universal Service Fund Mr. Christopher Kemei !
B Mr. Tom Olwero — Retired in 191 Aprilh
10. Head of Frequency Spectrum Management
2022
) Mr. Mohammed Haji (from 207 April |
11, Ag. Head of Frequency Spectrum Management
2022)
12. | Head of Licencing Compliance and Standards | Mr. Matano Ndaro
13. | Head of IT & ERM Mr. Michael Katundu
14. | Head of Multimedia Services Eng. Leo K. Boruett
2 Ag. Head of Competition, Tariffs and Market | CPA Mawell M. Mosoti (retired on 28"
. Analysis August 2021)
|
Ag. Head of Competition, Tariffs and Market ) i !
16. ‘ Dr. James Njeru (from 28" August 2021)
Analysis
17. | Head of Cyber Security Mr. Vincent Ngundi
B Head of Innovation and | . )
[8. Dr. Gilbert Mugeni
Research Development

i
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The Board of Directors have the responsibility of acting in the best interest of the Authority.
They are expected to act with due professional care and make good decisions; ensuring there
is no conflict of interest. To enhance efficiency and effectiveness, the Board constituted 5
standing committees with clearly defined terms of reference relating to key areas of the
Authority. The committees orjé{ﬂte on delegated authority without diluting the Bﬂ:{:—d’s

accountability

Finance Committee
The Finance Committee is established to give recommendations and advise the Board on
financial management strategies and objectives to foster growth and development of the

Authority.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is created to provide oversight by offering objective advice
and recommendations to the Board on whether the Authority’s governance, risk management,
and internal control processes are suitably designed and working as intended to achieve

objectives. The membership is Non-executive/independent board members.

Staff and Administration Committee
The Staff and Administration Committee is established mainly to give recommendations and
advise to the Board on personnel matters, policies and procedures and on issues of

administration of the assets of the Authority.

Technical Committee
The Technical Committee is established mainly to give recommendations and advise to the
! !

Board on Technical and Regulatory matters in the ICT sector.

Broadcasting Standards Committee
The Broadcasting Standards Committee is established to give recommendations and advise to

the Board on all broadcasting matters. This committee is established vide KICA (Amendment)
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Act, 2013, section 7 (f) establish a broadcasting standards committce and such other

committees as may be necessary to carry out its functions;

(¢)  Authority’s Headquarters
P. O Box 14448 - 00800
CA Centre ; .r.
Waiyaki Way
Nairobi, KENYA

()  Authority’s Contacts
Telephone: (254) 703 042 000
E-mail: info@ea.go ke

Website: www.ca.go.ke

g) Authorily’s Bankers
I« Kenya Commercial Bank
Sarit Centre Branch
P O Box 30081
Nairobi, 00800
Nairobi, Kenya

I

Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Westlands Branch

P.O. Box 66589

Nairobi, 00800

Nairobi, Kenya

3. Citibank NA Kenya
Head Office, Upper Hill
P.O Box 30071
Nairobi, 00100
Nairobi, Kenya
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(h) Independent Auditors
Auditor General
Kenya National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

(i) Principal chal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

vi
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II.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Capt. Gilbert M. Kibe. born 1963 is the Chairman of the
Board of Dircctors of the Communications Authority of
Kenya (CA) having been appointed on 17th May 2022 by
His Excellency President Uhuru Kenyatta.

Until his appointment, Capt. Kibe was the immediale
former Director General of the IKenya Civil Aviation
Authority (KCAA) where he had served lor over six years,
- He is a visionary leader with a 42 year stellar  =arecr
spanning management, lraining, policy development and
implementation. He has proven track record in providing
strategic leadership at senior level in the corporate and
government sectors.

He is an authority in the aviation industry where he has

influenced growth and development in through policy development and implementation, advisory
services, business development, training and enhancing service delivery in the sector.
Capt. Kibe has held various positions in international aviation bodies including as Chairman of the
Executive Committee of the Civil Air Navigation Services Organization (CANSOQ), Chairman of the
Regional Aviation Safety Group - Africa & Indian Ocean Islands at the International Civil Aviation
Organization (ICAO) and Chairman of the Board of the East African Community - Civil Aviation
Safety & Security Oversight Agency.

He has also previously worked as Executive Chairman Eagle Aviation, Director Business
Development at Home Afrika Ltd, Managing Director Bahati Ridge Development Ltd and Chief
Executive at Nairobi Flight Training Ltd. ‘
He holds a Master of Business administration (Aviation) from Moi University, Commercial Pilots
License with Single and Multi-Engine Land and Instrument Rating, among other qualifications.

A Sen. Kembi Gitura, MGH born in 1954 was appointed Chairman ol the

Board of the Communication Authority of Kenya for a three-year term with

effect from 18™ April 2021 and resigned on 8 February 2022,

Ie holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of Nairobi and is
an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya. He is a member of the Law
Society of Kenya, the East Africa Law Society, and is the Senior Partner in
the law firm of Kembi-Gitura & Company, Advocates.

He has many years work experience in the Public Service having served as the Member of
Parliament for Kiharu Constituency, Assistant Minister for Agriculture, Assistant Minister for
Foreign Affairs, Kenya Ambassador to the Kingdom of Belgium, Duchy of Luxembourg and the
LEuropean Union, Senator for Murang’a County and Deputy Speaker of the Senate. He is the
immediate past Board Chairman of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA).

Vil
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Mr Ezra Chiloba born in 1978, is the Director General of the
Communications Authority of Kenya, having been appointed on 28"
September 2021. Prior to this appointment, he served as Principal |
Partner at Chil & Kemp Strategies Ltd, a Strategy Management
Company, where he focused on strategy and risk management, policy |
and regulatory analysis, and leadership and management effectiveness.
Mr. Chiloba also served as the Chief Executive Officer/Commission
Secretary of the Independent Electoral and Boundaries Commission
(IEBC) between 2015 —2018.
' In this role, he was responsible for th= management and administration of an unparalleled lzige-
" scale and complex national election programme. He has also worked with other reputable
international and local organizations including the UN. His experience spans over 15 years in public
' sector management including policy, legislation, financial management, stakeholder management,
risk management and leadership. He has also served as a Board Member of the Youth Enterprise
Development Fund. Mr. Chiloba is an all-round public sector leader who is inspired by the idea that
a progressive society is dependent on a facilitative government. He also has a deep appreciation of
the communication industry: its global and local challenges and opportunities for social-economic
growth. He holds an MSc in Major Programme Management (MMPM) from the University of
- Oxford (UK) and an MA in Public Policy (MPP) from the Central European University (Hungary).
| He graduated with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Nairobi and was admitted to
' the Roll of Advocates of the High Court in Kenya. In 2015, he was named among the Top 40 under
' 40 Men by the Business Daily. . - ) _ .
1 Mrs. Mercy Wanjau born in 1972, Mrs. Wanjau served as the Director
Legal Services from 1% January 2019 till her appointment as the Acting
Director-General on 22" August 2019 until 28" September 2021. She
holds a Masters degree in Law (LLM) from the University of Cape Town,
Rachelors in Law (LLB) from the University of Nairobi. She also holds a
Postgraduate Certificate in Regulation of Telecommunications in Developing
and Transitional Economies.

She is a Certified Governance Auditor with ICPSK, an Associate of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, Council Member of the Institute of
| Certified Secretaries (Kenya), board member of the SOS Children’s villages and an Advocate of the
High Court of Kenya. She is also an Eisenhower Fellow. .

Mirs. Esther Koimett, CBS born in 1957, is the Principal Secretary for the
State Department of Broadcasting and Telecommunications, Ministry of
Information, Communications and Technology (ICT). She serves on the
CA Board in her capacity as Principal Secretary. She holds a Masters
Degree in Business Administration (MBA) from the University of Nairobi
and a Bachelors of Commetce (BCom) Degree from the University of
Nairobi.

; ‘\;:“‘ i She has over 25 years work experience in the public service, having
ks previously served as Principal Secretary in the Ministries of Tourism &

: Wildlife and Transport, Infrastructure, Urban Development and Public
Works. She has also served in numerous Boards including, Kenya Railways Corporation, Telkom
Kenya Limited and Safaricom Limited. She was appointed on 14 Jan 2020.

e
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Dr. (Eng.) Karanja Kibicho, CBS born in 1967 is the Principal Secretar
State Department of Interior, office of the president. He holds a doctorate in
Mechanical Engineering from the U niversity of Cape Town, South Africa,
a Masters of Science (MSc) degree in Mechanical Engincering and a |
Bachelor of Science (BSc) in Mechanical Engineering,

Dr. Kibicho has taught in various institutions of higher learning. including
Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT) where
he scrved as the chairman and senior lecturer in the Department of
Mechanical Engineering. He has served as an external examiner at the
University of 1ar es Salaam, visiting lecturer at the Central Universizy of
Technology, Free State, South A frica and a part-time Lecturer at the University of Cape Town.

Dr. Julius Muia born in 1960 is the Principal Secretary at The National
Treasury. Prior to this, he was the Principal Secretary at the State Department
for Planning - The National Treasury and Planning. An alumnus of the
University of Nairobi’s School of Business, Dr Julius Muia graduated with a
First Class Honours Degree in Accounting; Master’s Degree and PhD in
Finance from the same university. His professional qualifications include
Certified Public Accountant (CPA-K); Certified Public Secretary (CPS-K),
Associate Kenya Institute of Bankers; Associate Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators; and Certified Coach. Dr. Muia has over 25 years experience in
leadership in Kenya and UK. | - .

Ms. Patricia Kimama born in 1973, Ms. Patricia Kimama was first
appointed to the CA Board of Directors on 29th April 2016 for a period of
three years. She was re-appointed for a further three-year term effective |
6th January 2020.

Ms. Kimama holds an MBA (Strategic Management) from Daystar
University, a Master’s Certificate in Project Management from George
Washington University, and a Bachelor’s of Science Degree from Moi
University. She has attended various Lixecutive leadership development

: programs such as the Senior Management Program (SMLP) from the
Strathmore University’s Graduate School of Business and the Stanford Business Leadership Series
from Stanford University Graduate School of Business, She holds an Executive Coaching
Certificate from the Academy of Executive Coaches (AoEC). She is Currently undertaking her PHD
Studies in Organizational leadership at PAC University

Patricia is a business leader with 25 years’ experience. She has led business transformations,
managed operations, strategy implementation, customer expericnce, retail management and project
management in market leading corporate organizations and groups, spanning across Financial
Services, Public Sector, Mobile Money, Fintech, and the Telecoms industry having served in
organizations such as, Britam Holdings, NCBA Bank, CBA Bank. Safaricom and Davis & Shirtliff
Limited.

Previously, she served as the Chairperson of the Stalf Matters & Administration Committee, Board
Audit Committee and a member of the Technical Committee. She serves as the Chairperson of the
Finance Matters committee and a member of the Broadcasting committee,

1%
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| | ~ Prof. Levi Obonyo born in 1966, is an Associate Professor of
' Communication and Media Studies, and also the Dean of the School of
Communication, Language and Performing Arts at Daystar University. ;

Prof. Obonyo holds a PhD in Mass media and Communications from Temple
University Philadelphia, USA. He also holds a Postgraduate Diploma in
Tertiary Education from Potchefstroom University for Christian Higher
Education, South Africa. '

He is a former Chairman of the Media Council of Kenyz. He currently
' serves as a member of the Advisory Council to Kenya National Commission to UNESCO
' (KNATCOM) specializing on communications.

' He joined the CA Board on 20" May 2014 and reappointed in 29" April 2016 for a further term of
| three (3) years that lapsed on 28" April 2019. '

He was reappointed for a further term of three (3) years effective 6" January 2020. He serves as |
' the Chairperson of the Broadcasting & Standards committee. '

l | s Ms. Kentice Tikolo, OGW born in 1964, is a communications expert with |
over 15 years® experience in Strategic Corporate Communications and Public
Relations.

She is the founder and Managing Director of Impact Africa Limited, a
strategic Public Relations & Communications firm, based in Nairobi, Kenya.
Prior to going to private business, Ms. Tikolo worked at the Kenya Wildlife
Service as the Head of Corporate Communications.

| : S Ms. Tikolo holds a Master of Science degree in Public Relations from the
| University of Stirling in Scotland, and a first degree in Education from Kenyatta University.

She was appointed to the CA Board on 20" April 2016 for a period of three (3) years that lapsed on
28 April 2019. She was reappointed for a further term of three (3) years effective 6" January 2020
' She serves as the Chairperson of the Board Audit & Risk committee.

Ms. Laura Chite born in 1972 was appointed to the Board on 17th July
2021 for a period of three (3) years to serve as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Board where she continues to be a champion for|
digital transformation.

She has over 20 years’ experience in the ICT sector, having held various
: &n:,: o @ positions in marketing, “cc»mmun'ications, human resources, sales, bus@msg
o, .:qb"“\-»._..._u& ! d@vclopn"{c:nt and as 1 CEO. She is the foqndcr, HEI‘HO’«'IEUOI‘L, a Woman in I
' Leadership community focused on growing women in the tech space into.
leadership positions via networking, soft skills training, and mentorship in East Africa.

Ms.Chite was recently appointed as the CEO at StepWise Inc, which is an Enterprise that uses the
' power of technology to train and equip persons from historically underprivileged communities,
particularly women, youth -and Persons with Disabilities, to compete and succeed in the 4th
Industrial Revolution. She was previously the CEO at CIO East Africa, where she grew the business

X
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in the last four years into a brand that connects business & public sector to technology solutio
providers in support of their Digital transformation journey. Through her leadership, CIO East
Alrica has now grown into CIO Africa and will continue to bring technology closer to decision
makers to drive Africa’s transformational agenda and gear up for the fourth industrial revolution.
She previously worked at Microsoft in various roles where she was instrumental in arowing the
brand across Sub-Saharan Alrica.

Away from boardrooms, Ms, Chite has a passion for Rugby and is currently on the Advisory board
for Kisumu Rugby Football Club. She is currently the Chairperson of iGov Africa, a boutique
Kenyan innovation housc that partnei: with Governments, Development Agencies, and Inne sators
lor the development of the innovation ccosystem dedicated to efficient public service delivery
through digital transformation.
Some of her business and industry accolades and engagements include:

e  Gender Mainstreaming Awards — Inclusive Leader, East Africa, 2021

* Gender Mainstreaming Awards — Positive Role Model, East Africa 2021

* Judge at BOLD Awards (Awards for Global Digital Industries)and Thomson Reuters

Awards, Africa.

Speaker at several conferences — CIO Last Africa Tech Summits, The World Blockchain Summit,
Transform Afvica, Africa Women in Payments, The World Bank Covid 19 Digital Transformation
stafl’ conlerence, International Women’s Day, TedX amongst many othersborn in 1972 Has over 20
years’ experience in the ICT sector, having held various positions in marketing, communications,
human resources, sales, business development and as a CEQ, |

Mr. Mohamoud Noor, born in 1974 is a board member of the
Communications Authority of Kenya following his appointment in July
2021. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Science from The
University of the Valley, Diploma in Telecommunications from Kenya
College of Communications Technology, and the United States
Telecommunications Training Institute, and a diploma in Management from
Kenya Institute of Management and a

SRR Mr Mahmoud Nooris an  1CT Consultant and Youth advisor, with
experience spanning over 23 years. A trained Telecommunications technician and served in the
design and implementation of the Kenya's data and internet network while working at the then
State monopoly, Telkom Kenya in the late 90's. He was also instrumental in connecting the
Eastern Coast of Africa to the rest of the world through the laying of the Seacom undersea cable
that connects Eastern Africa to Europe and Asia in 2009 where he rose to be the Company's
Operational Manger for East and North Africa. Mahmoud has always been passionate about
Community work and has participated in many community projects all over Kenya but most
recently was instrumental in the support of the Technology Hubs in Nairobi by supporting them
with connectivity, while doubling up as the CSR Lead in Kenya for Seacom.

Mahmoud founded Swahili pot Hub, a creative space in Mombasa for Techies and Artists, a centre
that has become a safe space for hundreds of youths in Mombasa and neighbouring counties of
Kilifi and Kwale. Mahmoud is fondly referred to as Mentor by many young people in the Coast for
his dedication to provide advice and guidance to vulnerable youths who are surrounded by juvenile
gangs, radicalization and drug abuse. He is dedicated to creating a better space for the youths and
[uture generations,

[ 8
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" He also serves as a Patron and board member to several Organizations. He is a member of

' Companies Board of Management for the Salvation Army Likoni High School for the visually

i impaired and Chairman of the Management Committee of Serani Sports Ground Trust, a non-profit
organization that uses sports to nurture 100s of Sports men and women in Mombasa. Other roles '
\ entrusted to Mr. Mohamoud include Chairman Kenya Redcross Society, Mombasa branch, has
served as Member National Taskforce on Distributed Ledger, Blockchain and Artificial

| Intelligence is a Member of Advisory Board Schools 2030 Kenya, is a Member National COVID-
|19 ICT Advisory Committee, is a Director Kenya National Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Mombasa and Director -Innovus Group. He serves as the Chairperson of Technical Matters

| committee. {o g

" Mr. Paul Mureithi born in 1958 is a board member after being appointed in July |
2021. He has twenty-five (25) years’ experience in telecommunications having |
worked in Telkom (K) Limited. ‘

He has worked in cable network, fibre optic planning and construction in Nairobi |
Central and Nairobi North region as a Senior Manager. He is a Director of
Tymstar Motors Limited, Tymtrack Limited, Mweiga Homes Limited, Dualway
Properties Limited among others. _

Mr. Jackson Kiprotich Kemboi born in 1976 is a private surveyor within
Uasin-Gishu county, Elgeyo-Marakwet, Nandi and Tranzoia Counties. He was
appointed on 17th July 2021 for a period of three (3) years.

Mr. Kemboi holds a Diploma Certificate in Procurement and Bachelor of Arts |
degree in Political Science & Public Administration from the Moi University.
He is also pursuing a Masters degree in Human Resource Management in the
same University.

' Mr. Kemboi also serves as a Board member of the Kenya Investment Authority, He serves as the
Chairperson of Staff Matters Committee.
| ALTERNATE BOARD DIRECTORS

Mr. Christopher Guyo born in 1967, is the Alternate Director to the Cabinet
Secretary, The National Treasury. He is a seasoned Human Resource
professional with over 18 years experience.

Mr. Guyo has previously worked at Barclays Bank of Kenya Ltd as a Senior
HR Business Partner- Retail and Business Banking. He had carlier worked in
senior positions at Chevron Kenya Ltd, Shell- managed, Kenya Petroleum
Refineries and Post Bank.

He holds MBA in Human Resource Management from the University of Nairobi and currently
pursuing his Doctor in Business Administration at the Catholic University of Eastern Africa. He
also holds a Bachelor of Education (Arts) degree from Moi University, Higher National Diploma in
HRM, and Practitioners Diploma in Executive Coaching from Academy of Executive Coaching and

" an Advanced Certificate in Strategic HR Management from Cornell University, USA. Mr.Guyo is a

member of the Institute of Human Resource Management (IHRM) - Kenya, and HR Council

' member for the Kenya Institute of Management. He was appointed effective 17" July 2020. He

' resigned on 2" February 2022.
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Prof. Dulacha Galgalo born 1966 is Director, Financial and Sectors
Affairs Department at the National T reasury. Prior to secondment to the
National Treasury, he worked at the Central Bank of Kenya — long carcer
spanning over 20 years. At CBK, he served as Head of Academic
Division at the Kenya School of Monetary Studies (KSMS). He also
worked in two key departments: Research and Bank Supervision that are
responsible for price stability and financial system stability respectively.
Early in his carcer at CBK, he worked in the Banking Department
| dealing with currency issuance. Previously on secondment from CBK, at
inception of e Commission of Revenue Allocation (CRA), he served as
B UEH : Policy advisor. He completed his PhD study at the University of
Western Australia, Master of Business Administration and Bachelor of Commerce Degrees at the

University of Nairobi. He taught in universities in Kenya and Australia. Barako is widely published

and his areas of research interests are financial reporting, financial regulation and financial stability '

~as well as interdisciplinary research. He is ellow of the Institute of Public Accountants,

Australia as well as member of the Accounting and Finance Association of Australia and New
Zealand (AFAANZ). He is also a practicing member of the Institute of Chartered Investment and
Financial Analysts of Kenya (ICIFA) as well as Kenya Institute of Management (KIM). He served
in various boards: Chairman of Council, Dedan Kimathi University of Technology; Chairman of
Council, Meru University of Science and Technology; Treasurer of Council, Moi University; and
board member: Agricultural Finance Corporation (AFC), Capital Markets Authority (CMA) and
National Social and Security Fund (NSSF), Safaricom PLC and Kenya Ports AuthorityHe was
appointed effective 2nd February 2022

Interior and Coordination of National Government,

intemnational, regional and local conferences and is the current Secretary, Statc
Functions, responsible for planning, coordination, and Management of all state

Mr. Peter Wanjohi born in 1965, was appointed to the CA Board of Directors |
on 7th February 2018 as the Altemate Director to the Principal Secretary,

He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from New Port |
University. e has extensive experience in planning and coordinating

‘ functions. He has also been a member of several Committees such as member of
Kenya Vision 2030, National Communication Dissemination Strategy and served as a member of the |

' Task force on Restructuring of Human Resource Requirement of the Permanent Presidential Music
- Commission. He is also the Chairman, Kenya Music Festival.

Juliana Nashipae Yiapan born in 1969, MBS. Ms Yiapan is the Alternate
Director to the Principal Secretary, State Department of Broadcasting and
Telecommunications, MolCT.

She holds a Master of Business Administration (Public Service

Nairobi Scholar with a Master of Arts in Political Science and Public
Administration as well as a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Government.

She is an accomplished Administrative Officer and Policy Analyst with an
illustrious service, through the ranks, spanning over 20 years in the Public
Service, niore specifically at the Minisiry of ICT, Innovation and Youth Affairs, Executive Qffice
of the President and Office of the Deputy President, Attorney General’s Chambers and Public

Xiii
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Service Commission.

In 2016 she was conferred a National Honour, 2nd Class in the Order of the Burning Spear, Moran |
' of the Order of the Burning Spear (MBS) for her distinguished and dedicated service o the Nation.

She also earned the Government of Kenya Scholarship to the University of Birmingham, UK and |
' University of Nairobi Postgraduate Scholarship.

She was appointed effective 3™ May 2019.
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. MANAGEMENT TEAM ‘ ‘
Mr Ezra Chiloba born in 1978, is the Director General of the
Communications Authority of Kenya, having been appointed on 28"
September 2021. Prior to this appointment, he served as Principal
Partner at Chil & Kemp Strategics Ltd, a Strategy Management
Company, where he focused on strategy and risk management, policy
and regulatory analysis, and leadership and management effectiveness,
Mr. Chiloba also served as the Chief Executive Officer/Commission
Secretary of the Independent Electoral and Boundarics Commission

= (IEBC) between 2015 — 2018, .y

In this role, he was responsible for the management and administation of an unparalleled large-
scale and complex national clection programme. He has also worked with other reputablc
 International and local organizations including the UN. His experience spans over 15 years in public |

- sector management including policy, legislation, {inancial management, stakeholder management,

risk management and leadership. He has also served as a Board Member of the Youth Enterprise
Development Fund. Mr. Chiloba is an all-round public sector leader who is inspired by the idea that
4 progressive society is dependent on a facilitative government. He also has a deep appreciation of
the communication industry; its global and local challenges and opportunities for social-economic
growth. He holds an MSe in Major Programme Management (MMPM) from the University of
Oxford (UK) and an MA in Public Policy (MPP) from the Central European University (Hungary).
He graduated with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Nairobi and was admitted to
the Roll of Advocates of the High Court in Kenya. In 2015, he was named among the Top 40 under

- 40 Men by the Business Daily. o )

Mrs. Mercy Wanjau

born in 1972, Mrs.

Wanjau served as the

Director Legal Services

from 1% January 2019

till her appointment as

the Acting Director-

General on 22" August

‘
CPA Joseph Kimanga is |
the Director, Finance & |
Accounts, He holds a
Masters degree in
Business Administration |
(Finance) and a Bachelor
of Education (Arts) degree
in Economics & Business

. . th e
%(_)I 3 - Lll-lélé)zl 213 Studies. He is a Certified Public Accountant of
September 21 Kenya-CPA (K).

holds a Masters degree in Law (LLM) from the '
University of Cape Town, Bachelors in Law
- (LLB) from the University of Nairobi. She also .
holds a Postgraduate Certificate in Regulation of |
Telecommunications  in Developing  and
ITransitional Economies.

She is a Certified Governance Auditor with
ICPSK, an Associate of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators, Council Member of the Institute
of Certified Secretaries (Kenya), board member
of the SOS Children’s villages and an Advocate
of the High Court of Kenya. She is also an
Eisenhower Fellow,
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CPA. Rosalind Murithi is ‘
the Director, Risk
Management and Internal
Audit. She holds a Master |
of Business |
Administration, and ‘I
Bachelor of Commerce |
Degree. She is a Certified
Public._‘i Accountant  of |

Mr. Christopher Kemei is ‘

( the Director, Universal
: Service Fund. He holds

Masters degree in |
[ Operational

Telecommunications

Director, Licensing |
Compliance and Standards. |
He is currently pursuing a |
Maters degree of Business
Administration degree and

degree in Economics and a |
Post graduate Diploma in
Regulation

| Telecommunications.

Eng. Leo K. Boruett is
the Director, Multimedia
services. He holds a MPhil
Degree in Information
Engineering; BSc Degree
in Electrical and
Electronics Engineering;
Registered ~ Professional
Engineer-EBK; and an
Executive Masters Degree |
in Business Administration

‘Mr. Matano Ndaro is the Ik It

holds a Bachelor of Arts

of |

Myr. Juma Kandie is the
Director, Human Capital
&  Administration. He
holds Msc. in Human
Resource Management, a
Bachelor of Commerce
degree as well as a Post
Graduate Certificate in
Strategy.

»E

Mr. Tom Olwero is the
Director, Frequency |
Spectrum Management.

He holds a B.Sc. in
Electrical Engineering and
a Masters of DBusiness
Administration
(Management).

Mr. Michael Katundu
is the Director,
Information Technology
and Enterprise Resource

Management He is a
holder of a MSc. and
BSc.in Computer
Science.

Mr. Christopher
Wambua is the Director,
Consumer and Public
Affairs. He holds a
master’s degree in
International Studies, a

postgraduate diploma in
Mass Communications, a

- post-graduate diploma in
Public Relatlons from the Chartered Institute of
Public Relations and a degree in Education. Mr.
Christopher Wambua has been deployed on a

_special Assisgment
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CPA Maxwell Mogaka
Mosoti is the Ag, Director, |
Competition, Tariffs and
Market Analysis. He is a |
CertitiedPublic Accountant |
of Kenya. He holds a
Bachelor  of  Business
Administration degree and |

: Master of Science in
Finance degree from the tiaiversity of Nairobi.
Mr. Mosoti retired on 28 August 2021

Mrs. Jane Rotich is thi
Ag. Assistant Director,
Procurement. She holds
two Masters degree in
Business Administration
(Strategic  Procurement)
and, a Masters degree in
Business Administration.
She also  holds =
Bachelor=ol” Arts degree

and a Postgraduate diploma in Purchasing and
| Supplies.

Cyber Security and E- |
Commerce. He holds a
Bachelor  of  Science
degree  in Computer
Science, and a Global
Executive MBA.

Dr. James Njeru is the Ag, Director, H Mr.

Mr. Vincent Negundi is | Dr. Gilbert Mugeni is the Ag. Assistant
the Assistant Director, Director, Innovation and Resecarch Department.

Mohammed Haji is the Ag. Director,

Competition, Tariffs and Market Analysis. | Director, Frequency Spectrum Ma nagement

M/s. Patricia Muchiri is the Ag. Director, Consumer and Public A ffairs
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IV. CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
I am pleased to hereby present the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2021/2022 on behalf of the
Board of Directors, Management and Staff of the Authority. The report seeks to provide an outline

of the Authority’s strides in the continued fulfilment of its mandate.

We recognize the central role that the ICT sector plays as a catalyst for growth in all other sectors of
the economy. The year saw= relative growth in the Country’s economy growing i3 7.5 per cent
compared to a decline of 0.?;; per cent recorded in 2020. The growth was largely attributed to the
resumption of economic activities and utilization of online market place by consumers after the
government eased Covid-19 containment measures as well as the Covid-19 Vaccine rollout, policy

support and supportive financial conditions.

The Information and Communication Sector grew significantly by 8.8 per cent due to the increased
mobile money and commerce transactions coupled with the continued use of digital platforms and

services that has been embraced widely by both the Consumers and Institutions.

" Ttis evident that indeed ICT’s provide the foundation for national transformation and realization of
the Vision 2030 whose pillars were entrenched in the Authority’s Strategic Plan (2019 - 2023).
With the Strategic Plan set to come to a close in 2023, the Authority is pleased to report that it has
made significant strides in the implementation of the key result areas identified in the Strategic

Plan.

The Authority continued to take active steps in seeking to bridge the digital divide in the provision
of ICT services in un-served and underserved areas of the country. Towards this end, the Authority
continued with the rollout of its USF — funded initiatives that is the Voice Infrastructure and
Services Project, Education Broadband Connectivity. Automation of Occurrence book and crime
management system and E-resource centres — Software for visually impaired. |

We further embarked on the law reform process in order to develop and implement forward-looking
regulation to foster competitive and efficient markets in the ICT sector. T he Authority is optimistic
that this shall create a competitive and robust ICT sector that will not only create a conducive
enabling environment for ICTs to thrive but it shall also avails diverse and more a:Ffordable 1EE

services to consumers.
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The increased adoption of digital technologies by individuals and organisations has brought forth an
accelerated digital transformation that has led to technological innovation advancing at a rapid pace
this has on the inverse, widened the cyber threat/attack landscape. It is in light of this reality that the
Authority has continued to implement and enlorce the National Cyber Security Management
Framework through the National KE-CIRT/CC. The year witnessed the launch of the National
Computer and Cybercrime isordination Committee (NC4) to oversee security relat:-# aspects of the

cyberspace where the Director General of the Authority sits as a Committee member.,

The year also witnessed a lot of election preparedness activities taking place on the part of the
Authority together with other national Agencies to ensure seamless clectioneering period. This
included the creation of consumer awareness and enlorcement of the Kenya Information and

Communications (Registration of Sim-Cards) Regulations 2015,

This is a brief synopsis of the myriad of achievements and milestones that the Authority has
achieved in the year which would not have been possible without the support of the Ministry of
ICT, Innovation and Youth Affairs, our Licensees, Strategic partners, all other key stakeholders and

the general public,

[ commend the Board of Directors, Management and members of StafT for their resilience in
delivering the achievements during the year.

Capt. Gilbert Kibe
Chairman of the Board
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V. REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL

ICT’s remains a critical component of Kenya’s economic growth, having been identified as one of
the key sources of new opportunities to foster innovation and boost economic and social prosperity.
According to the Kenya Economic Survey 2022, Information and Communication sector grew
significantly by 8.8 per cent compared to 6.3 per cent in 2020, the growth 1s attributed to increased
use of mobile money, adoptiza of e-commerce and e-government services. During i year, ICT’s
value addition increased by 7.2 per cent from KES 274.7 billion in 2020 to KES 294.4 billion in
2021.

The growth can also be attributed to progressive regulatory measures, consultations and constant
engagement with our stakeholders in the industry. The sector equally witnessed increased access to
services in various respects. By the close of the year, the number of Data/Internet subscriptions
orew by 1.9 per cent to 47.6 million. Broadband subscriptions grew by 9.5 per cent to 30.1 million
with mobile broadband accounting for 97.0 percent of the total broadband subscriptions. Mobile
money subscriptions stood at 37.21 million, representing a growth of 6.8 percent from the previous

year.

During the year, the mobile telecommunications sector continued to experience increased
competition, which led the three mobile operators to expand their network coverage by deploying
additional 2G, 3G and 4G transceivers across the country with growth rates of 11.29, 0.93, and
39.27 percent respectively. Additionally, Safaricom PLC deployed one hundred and two 5G
transceivers on selected sites. To further enhance competition, the Authority approved the upgrade
of Jamii Telecommunications Limited Network Facility Provider Tier 2 license to Network Facility

Provider Tier 1.

In order to ensure plurality and diversity of viewers in broadcasting sector, we allocated FM
Broadcasting frequencies to 79 FM Stations which comprised of 65 commercial FM Stations and 14
Community FM station. However, to step up compliance, the Authority revoked 33 M sound
broadcasting frequency assignments from 22 broadcasters who failed to meet the subsector’s
stipulated regulatory requirements.

In line with consumer protection, the Authority monitored quality of service for the thrse (3) mobile
network operators across 44 counties to ensure that the services provided by the operators meet the
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set quality parameters. The level of compliance for Airtel Networks Kenya Limited, Safaricom PLC
and Telkom Kenya Limited was recorded as 78.6 per cent, 95.0 per cent and 71.4 per cent,
respectively against a required threshold of 80.0 per cent. We also  embarked on a SIM cards
validation exercise to weed out illegally registered and unregistered SIM cards from the network

operators.

In efforts towards the attairent of universal access to ICT in the unserved and uniferserved areas,
construction of passive infrastructure was completed in 31 sub-location out of which 15 sub-
locations arc on air. These sublocations are part of 101 sublocations targeted in phase II of the
Voice Infrastructure Project and, once completed will enable approximately xxxx number people

connected to mobile networks,

As the ICT sector expands, we maintain our quest to bring more into the digital universe and pursue
our vision of a digitally transformed Nation. We rely not only on the internal resources but also on
collaboration with other stakeholders to deliver on this vision. That notwithstanding, indeed the

achievemnents realized would not have been realized without the dedication of staff at the Authority,

I also truly appreciate the support that we received from the Board of Directors and our parent
Ministry of ICT , Innovation and Youth Affairs. We look forward to a vibrant oncom ing year as the
sector diversilies.

LW //__ ) (

Fzra Chiloba
Director General
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VI.
FOR FY 2021/22

STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The operations of the Communications Authority for the FY 2021/2022 were founded on the three

(3) strategic pillars and eight (8) objectives within its 5-Year Strategic Plan for the FY 2018/2019-

2022/2023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

v Pillar 1: Access and Market Development

~" Pillar 2: Enabling Environment

v" Pillar 3: Capacity Development

The Board assesses the performance by reviewing the status of implementation of the annual work

plan on a quarterly basis and at the end of the financial year. The Authority achieved its

performance targets set for the FY 2021/2022 period for its 3 strategic pillars, as indicated in the

diagram below:

KRAs Strategic Key Activitics Achievements
Objectives Performance
i Indicators
Achieve e Roll out of|e Support sPhase [: Infrastructure
Access and | Universal ICT services infrastructure rolled out in 76 out of 78
Market Access  to in the development target sub-locations.
Developme | ICT Services underserved (mobile ePhase I[I: Engaged 5
nt and un-served network service providers for the
areas connectivity) roll out of phase II voice
e Increased e Support infrastructure project in
connectivity automation of | 101 sublocations, out of
to ICT 110 Judicial | which 33 sites were
services Courts completed and 15
o Support 47| sublocations are on air.
Level-3 public | #MoU and TCA between
hospital the Authority and
Judiciary signed
e Undertook a multi-agency
consultation exercise with
the MoH, MICT&YA and
ICTA that resulted in
agreement of agreed on a
list of 24 Level 4 hospitals
to be supported by the
USE.
Ensure e Increased e Monitor the | e Received and processed 77
Efficient ICT competitive ICT market: - | applications for tariffs
Markets landscape Management | e Received and processed 78
of tariffs and | applications for
e Increased promotions/sp promotions and special
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KRAs Strategic Key Activities Achievements
Objectives Performance
Indicators
number of ccial offers offers.
Licensces License e Received and processed
additional applications and licensed
Increased operators and | 678 additional  service
Quality of service providers.
voice service providers * The overall level of QoS
Measurements | stood at 89.5%per cent as at
and the end of the Financial
monitoring Year.
quality of
s service
Ensure Manage Manage Radio | e Undertook 757 on-site
Sustainable Radio Frequency inspections  on  radio
Developmen Frequency Spectrum spectrum monitoring,
tol ICTs Spectrum reésources surveillance and recorded
resources » a compliance rate of 79.3
No. of cyber Undertake per cent.
threats  and technology e Detected 444,058,806
no. of cyber watch and cyber threats and 1ssucd
security share  cyber 7,973,129 alerts to the
advisories !.].]I'C‘Elt ; allected Institutions.
i s information, |
alerts and
. warnings )
Enabling Ensure I'requency Structured * Reviewed Regulations and
Environme Appropriate monitoring framework for | submitted to  MIIYA
nt Regulatory and engagement taskforce.
Environment enforcement of policy | e A framework for Trunked
frarneviil review  and | Radio Network for PMR
Draft law systems developed
regulations ;Icvelopment ° Copsm_ner Protection
and policy Develop a | Guidelines and Industry
—— f{'axneworlc for | customer care standards
. Trunked developed
Spectrum Radio e Spectrum Management
Management Network  for | Guidelines developed
Guidelines PMR systems
Trunked Develop *
Radio Spectrum
Network Management
framework Guidelines
Enhance Framework Implement * Launched the Child
Consumer for the framework for Online Protection
Protection handling  for the handling campaign  on  30th
and Child Online for Child September 2021 B
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KRAs Strategic  Key Activities Achievements
Objectives Performance ' ‘
Indicators :
Empowerme Protection Online e Carried out Media
nt Complaints Protection campaign on  Child
e No. of days to Complaints Online Protection and
Type-approve Carry out publicised in  Social
ICT standards and media and TV.
equipment type approval | e Facilitated stakeholders
o inspeci:ons raining on including
e No. of Develop and judiciary
Published review e Type-approved all
Sector corporate and telecommunications
Statistics consumer equipment received
Reports publications during the FY 2020/21
Prepare ICT in an average of 12 days
sector e Prepared and published
Statistics the ICT Sector Statistics
Report for the 4th
Quarter of the FY
2020/21 and 1st, 2nd
and 3rd Quarter of the
FY 2021/22.
Enhance e Implementati Stakeholder e Implemented Stakeholder
Communic on of the Engagement Engagement initiatives
ation, Corporate initiatives e Implemented regional and
Stakeholder Communicati Establish international  obligations
Engagemen ons Strategy parinerships at | arising from  policy
t and s [mplementati local, regional | forums.
Partnership on of and e Facilitated the re-election
Regional and international to the Council of
International level Administration (CA) and
Obligations Review and | the Postal Operations
e Signed Implementatio | Council, the two key
MoUs n of MoUs decision-making organs of
the Universal Postal Union
(UPU) on 26th August
2021 among other
initiatives.
e MoU with Judiciary, MoH
and KNBS signed.
Capacity Attain High | e [Increase Finalize the | eSigned the Licensing
Developme | Institutional Automation full Management System
nt Capacity and levels through operationaliza | contract on 14" April 2022
Performance BPRA tion of all the | and held an inception
Excellence project. modules  of | meeting on 26™  April
e Annual ERP 2022.
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KRAs Strategic Key Activities Achievements
Objectives Performance
Indicators
Trainings of | e  Train stall | oIn total 22 out of 31 ERP
staff’ on based on the | modules are in use while 3
Current skills gap | are partially in use.
Trends in [CT (performance | e11 Training Intervention
e Level ol gap and | Programs were
adhercnce to training needs | implemented
4 Rask * Co-ordinate eThe Authority conducted
management Risk risk assessment and
controls Management prepared 4 risk
e Upgrade of and  conduct management reports within
working tools Risk the year.
Assessment  Conducted governance
= Procure compliance  and  legal
working tools | audits.

to meet work

* Procured working tools for

demands  as | staff including  desktop
per the | computers and laptops for

Procurement stall' among others,
- plan |
e Embrace e Operational e Undertake eIn  collaboration  with
Research Research  and | research and | Strathmore University,
and Innovation develop Technical University of
Innovation Centre innovative Kenya and  Glasgow
Culture * Promote regulatory University initiated
Innovation and | solutions research on the last mile
Incubation ¢ Develop and | connectivity solutions post
implement  an| COViID-19 for Kenyan

innovation counties,

framework e Research and Innovation

framework developed.

e The following  R&D
initiatives were
undertaken: (1) The DAB
Framework (2) Providing
input  into  the ITU
ConnectZRecover research
initiative (3) contributed in
the developed the ITU
Connect2Recover research
initiative report.

XXV



Communications Authority of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

VIL.

a)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The Board of Directors have the responsibility of acting in the best interest of the Authority. They

arec

con

expected to act with due professional care and make good decisions; ensuring there is no

flict of interest. To enhance efficiency and effectivencss, the Board constituted (5) standing

committees with clearly defined terms of reference relating to key areas of the Authority. The

contiilittees operate on delegated authority without diluting the Board’s accountability

i.  Finance Committee
The Finance Committee is established to give recommendations and advise the Board on
financial management strategies and objectives to foster growth and development of the
Authority.

ii. Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is created to provide oversight by offering objective advice and
recommendations to the Board on whether the Authority’s governance, risk management, and
internal control processes are suitably designed and working as intended to achieve objectives.
The membership is non-executive/independent board members.

iii. Staff and Administration Committee

The Staff and Administration Committee is established mainly to give recommendations and

advise to the Board on personnel matters, policies and procedures and on issues of

administration of the assets of the Authority.

iv.  Technical Committee
The Technical Committee is established mainly to give recommendations and advise to the
Board on Technical and Regulatory matters in the ICT sector.

v. Broadeasting Standards Committee
The Broadcasting Standards Committee is established to give recommendations and advise to
the Board on all broadcasting matters. This committee is established vide KICA (Amendment)
Act, 2013, section 7 (f) establish a broadcasting standards: committee and such other committees

as may be necessary to carry out its functions;
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b) During the Financial Year, the Board of Directors held Meetings as follows:

Name of Full Finance

Technica

Broadcasti | Staff & Board Total | %
Board Boar | Committ | | ng & Administ | Audit &
Member d ce Committ | Standards ration Risk
ce Committee | Committ Committ
L ) |ee ce
No.of | 13 9 8 5 o |13 6 55
Meeti
|ngs | ‘ ) — L,
1 Sen. Kembi- 11 11 100
Gitura
2 Capt. Gilbert | 1 1 100
Kibe
3 Prof, Levi 13 8 5 26 100
s _| Obonyo
4 Juliana 13 13 5 31 06.8%,
L Yiapan ]
5 | Peter Wanjohi | 10 5 5 20 86%
6 Chris Huka 4ol§ 4 of3 203 10 62.5 v
7 Patricia 13 9 4 26 96,29
Kimama L
8 Kentice 13 3 6 22 91.6v0
Tikolo L
9 Laura Chite 13 6of7 | 70f10 26 86.6'
10 Paul Mureithi | 13 8 40f6 25 83.3%
11 Jackson 13 8 8 29 100%
| Kemboi
12 Mahmoud 13 7ol7 3of5 23 88.4¢
- Noor =
13 Prof. Dulacha | 3 of 6 4ol4 20f2 9 75%
Barako |

*Data relates to:

Directors are members.

Special meetings for both full board and commillees.
- Percentage attendance based on attendance to Board
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(c) Board and Members’ Performance
The Board of Directors carries out an annual Board Evaluation exercise facilitated by the State

Corporations Advisory Commitiee. The Board Evaluation session for the current Financial Year
was carried out on 22nd July. 2021. The results of the exercise are awaited. The result of the
evaluation is deliberated by Members of the Board, and action plan for areas of low performance is
also agreed upon.

The operations of the Board are guided by a Board Charter, wl__aich outlines and elaborates on the
variotis Committees of the Board and their Terms of Re:l:"c:n—:rfé.é. The Board Charter also outlines the

modalities of execution of Board business.

(d) Members Trainings and Induction

During the Financial Year under review, Members of the Board attended the following trainings as
part of continuous capacity building for members. Management arranges for induction
sessions/retreats for newly appointed members. During the Financial Year, Management arranged

for a one-week induction for the newly appointed Chairman.

(e) Board Succession Plan

Succession planning for the Board is managed by ensuring that there is a staggered recruitment and
appointment of Board Members by the appointing authority. The First batch of the Board members
was appointed on 6 January 2020 anticipating the other batch of four (4) Board members was done

Jater in July 2021 to ensure continuity and succession planning at the Board Level.

(f) Process of Appointment and Removal of Directors

Following the enactment of the Miscellaneous Amendment Act, 2018, the Appointment of thei
Chairman of the Board rests with the President, while the Members of the Board are appointed by

the Cabinet Secretary. The Act was challenged in court and declared unconstitutional for want of

concurrence by the Senate before enactment, amongst other grounds (Petifion No. 284 of 2019 and

383 of 2019 (Consolidated), Senate and 4 others V5. Spéakar of the National Assembly and

Others).

The position however still obtains as at the date of reporting, as the court contemporancously
suspended the decision for nine (9) months with effect from 30" October, 2020. Previously, both
the Chairman and the Board Members were competitively recruited.
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Section 6(2) of the Kenya Information and Communications Act (KICA) provide that in appointin, -
the members of the Board under subsection (1)(e), the Cabinet Secretary shall ensure-

(a) that the appointees to the Board reflect the interests of all sections of society;

(b) equal opportunities for persons with disabilities and other marginalised groups; and

(c) that not more than two-thirds of the members are of the same gender. Section 6D of the

Act also provides on how members may vacate office.

(g) Koles and functions of the Board

The Board of Directors has the oversight role on the governance of eth Authority in the discharge of
its roles. It provides strategic direction and guidance for the Authority. The specific powers of the
Board are provided for under section 7 of KICA as follows:

(h) Conflict of Interest

The Authority has a Conflict-of-Interest Policy. The Board of Directors and Management are
acutely aware of the need for disclosure of Conflict of interest in all matiers in which members
deliberate upon. A conflict-of-interest Register is maintained in respect of all mectings, and Board
Members are required to acknowledge absence of conflict of interest in all matters on Agenda. This

applics to all Management Meeting.

() Board remuneration

Board Members of the Authority are remunerated strictly on the basis of applicable Circulars on
remuneration of Board Members, The remuneration of Board Members is also guided by KICA,
which provides at section 10 that the Board, in consultation with the Minister, shall pay to members

of the Board such remuneration, fees or allowances for expenses as it may determine.

(1) Governance audit
During the (inancial year, the Authority procured an external consultant to conduct a Governance

Audit. The Audit will be for up to the Financial Year ended 2021/2022. The Audit is cxpected to

provide an opportunity to enhance the governance systems of the Authority.

(k) LEthics and conduct
The Authority has a Code of Ethics, applicable to both members of staff and Board Members.
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VIII. STATEMENT OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Authority has in place an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) policy framework that is aligned
to the ISO 31000 (International Risk Management Standard) and the Mwongozo code of governance
for state corporations. The policy forms part of the Authority’s internal control and governance
arrangements and explains risk management process (risk assessment, documentation, treatment,
review and monitoring) as well as reporting procedures.

The Board oversees risk management within the Authority by determining that risk management
strategies and policies are in place, and that appropriate, adequate and effective controls are
established. The Board reviews, monitors and evaluates the status of implementation the ERM

framework and the effectiveness of risk control measures on a quarterly basis.

i. Internal Control Systems

Our internal control processes are designed to provide reasonable assurance that we achieve our
objectives through proper stewardship of the Authority’s resources. The Authority reviewed QMS
procedures under 1SO 9001: 2015 and the ISO ISMS 27001:2015 to ensure relevance and
compliance with the relevant requirements. The Authority continuously monitored adherence to the
internal controls by undertaking audits in conformance with the Internal Audit Charter and

International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

Business Continuity Management
the Authority embarked on the process of implementing the Business Continuity Management

(BCM) Framework. The framework is aligned to 18022301: 2019

Business Continuity Management (BCM) is a component of an organization’s risk management
atrategy that involves developing and maintaining a framework and actions necessary to assure the
resilience and continuity of the Business. It includes managing the recovery or continuation of
critical business activities in the event of a business disruption, it helps the organization continue {0

deliver its services amidst the disruption(s).
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In an effort to implement the BCM framework, the Authority, undertook a Business Impac
Analysis (BIA) to identify the business processes that are critical to its survival. The following

process was identified to be critical to its business.

e [T Infrastructure, Networks, Database, Applications and Information Security;

* Accounts payables (Staff payments, supplier payments and Statutory payments);
Broadcast Content Monitoring and Handling consun:<i complaints on Broadcast content
e Crisis communications;

® [Irequency monitoring;

* Resolution of Frequency interference;

* Lxtraction of digital evidence for presentation in court.

Crisis Management

The Authority, by nature of its unique and strategic mandate as the regulatory agency is, from time
to time, faced with issues that, if not managed properly, have the potential to adversely affect the
organization’s service delivery and reputation. The imminent risks might manifest through inability
to access CA offices, Cyber-attacks, network connectivity challenges and media coverage with

negative tonality, criticism by internal or external stakeholders or changes in stakeholder behaviour.

[t1s thus imperative that we should undertake a crisis preparedness exercise, by putting e in place a

robust system to not only detect but also deal with issues and crisis as they emerge.
Communication

The Authority has put in place a crisis communications plan which is aligned with the wider context
and framework provided in the Communications and Stakeholder Engagement Strategy (2019-
2023). The plan provides an Opportunity to lay the requisite foundation for issue identification,
preparations and responses. It is expected that in the course of the executing various substantial

projects, the authority will entrench a culture of developing crisis preparedness and execution plans.
The crisis communications plan secks to:

* Identify inherent operational risks and issues that have potential to develop into a crisis and thus

negatively impact on CA’s reputation.
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- Align with any existing business continuity processes involving CA operations and specific

industry/licensees’ operations

« Establish an early warning system and a response process to proactively deal with issues before

they develop into a crisis

« Tdentify the requisite logistical activities, processes and infrastructure to be deployed in response
to crigis involving CA. The plan is a living document that shall be updated regularly with a view to

aligning it with the obtaining circumstances..
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IX.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operational and financial performance

The Authority continued to discharge its mandate of regulating and facilitating the development of
the Information and Communications sectors including;  broadcasting, multimedia,
lelecommunications, electronic commerce, postal and courier services; through licensing and

issuance of frequencies.

As at 30th June 2022, the total Revenue earned was Kshs. 11.39 billion against a revised budget of
Kshs. 9.89 billion. This represents a positive variance of 15%. The income of the Authority is
majorly earned from Frequency utilization fees and Annual operating license fees, which account
for 78.6% and 14.7% respectively; of the amount earned as at the end of the year. Thesc revenue
streams are invoiced at the beginning of the financial year. Interest Income is the third revenue

source contributing 6.2% of the total inconie earned as at end of the year.

The total Operating Expenditure for the period ended 30th June 2022 was Kshs. 4.2 billion
compared to a budget of 4.77billion, other gains/losses total to Kshs.2.57billion (net loss). The
resultant surplus is Kshs.4.59 billion. The major expenditure was General Expenses Kshs.1.98
accounting for 29.1%, followed by employee costs Kshs.1.2 billion and total provision for bad debts
of Kshs.2.57billion and accounting for 37.9% and 18% respectively. The other expenditures include
depreciation and amortization Kshs.661million, Repairs and maintenance Kshs.309.27million and

Remuneration to Directors Kshs.51.86million

Compliance with statutory requirements
The Authority has complied with statulory requirements and there are no known non-compliance
issues that may expose the Authority to potential contingent liabilitics. There are ongoing litigations
out of the ordinary course of the business of the Authority. The litigations are part heard and
accordingly, no contingent liabilities arc anticipated in respect of the same that may be quantilied;
except for the following:
i.  High Court Civil Case No. 2071 of 2000: M-Link Communications Limited vs. CCK &
Telkom Kenya Limited. The plaintiff is secking damages based on a Trial Agreement with

the defunct.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continucd)

The directors believe, based on the information currently available, that the legal matter above is not
likely to have material effect on the results of the Authority’s operations, financial position or

liquidity. Therefore, no contingent provision has been made in the financial statements.

Major risks

The Authority developed and implemented the ERM framework as per guidelines based on 15O
31000 International Standard — Risk Management Principles and Treasury Circular No. 3.2009,
Institutional Risk Management Framework. Further in FY 2021/22 the authority undertook a risk

assessment review of the authority strategic/operational risks.

Key corporate risks
The Authority undertakes risk assessment on a continuous basis. In the course of the year, the

following key corporate risks, associated risk levels as well as risk treatment options were

identified.

Our top ten (10) risks

1. Inadequate content regulation leading fo failure 1o detect non-compliance with content
standards; 16

Failure to effectively manage interconnection between licensees; 15

Inadequate USF Project Models (project designing); 16

Delay in the implementation of the ICT Roadmap 2018 -2023; 16

v w D

Inability to recover ICT Systems and Services following a disaster or major disruption at the
Authority; 16

Inadequate monitoring and analysis of cyber threats intelligence and cyber incidence; 16
Inadequate digital forensic capacity to address rising cybercrime; 16

Regulatory Gaps arising out of delays in review of the regulatory instruments; 15

o o N o

Low funds absorption and 16

10. Failure to effectively prosecute and resolve cases arising {rom enforcement activities16

The Authority uses a 5 by 5 Risk Matrix as showu below to rate its risks.

RISK MAP OF THE TOP TEN (10) RISKS
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Almost
Certain 5

Likely 4

Likelihood | Possible

L2

Unlikely 2

Rare |
3 4 5
:nsigniﬁcam Minor Moderate | Major | Fundamental
: I Consequence |

Material arrears in statutory/financial obligations
The Authority has continued to honour its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Remittance of statutory deductions, payment for supplies, staff payments and payment of other dues

was done promptly; consequently, the Authority does not have material arrears as at 30" June 2022,
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X. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Communications Authority of Kenya (CA) seeks to mainstream its environmental
sustainability goals by aligning them to our strategy of putting the customer/Citizen first,
delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. The Authority
therefore continues to comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations. CA’s
Environmental sustainability( ES) involves making decisions and taking actions that are in
the interest of protecting the natural worlc. with emphasis on preserving the capability of the
environment to support human life. The Authority recognizes that some of its operations and
those of its licensees such as the telecommunication companies have impacts on the
environmental. social and economic aspects at the national and regional level and hence the
need to mainstream environmental sustainability objectives in all its operations and
activities. Below is an outline of the organization’s policies and activities that promote
sustainability:

(i) Sustainability strategy and profile
The Authority’s Board and Management is committed to the 2030 Sustainable Development

Goals (SDGs) including the following goals that relate to environmental sustainability:

e Goal 6: Ensure availability and sustainable management of water and
sanitation for all

e Goal 13: Take urgent action to control climate change and its impact

e Goal 15: Protect, restore and promote sustainable use of terrestrial ecosystems,
sustainably manage forests, combat diversification and halt and
reserve land degradation and halt biodiversity loss.

e Goal 17: Strengthen the means of implementation and revitalize the global
partnerships for sustainable development The Authority engages in
development practices that are sustainable, and prudently utilises
resources to ensure waste and cost reduction, while ensuring quality
and value for money.

(ii) Environmental performance
The Authority is committed to supporting the principles of environmental sustainability
through the Environmental Policy as follows:

o Environmental Sustainability —Planning: The  Authority’s Environmental

Sustainability Committee holds quarterly meetings every financial year and submit
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quarterly reports to National Environmental Management Authority (NEMA.
updating status progress of ES activities.
Environmental Planning: The Authority Conducts Environmental audit to inform of :
the appropriate measures to be put in place in ES, assess the understanding of the
staff in mainstreaming ES at the workplace and to implement the recommendation
from the audit.
Pollution Control: The Authority is commived to practising responsible waste
management through adoption of appropriate mechanism for collection and disposal
of organic, plastic, paper waste and e- waste by designating segregation bins for cach
varicty of waste for proper disposal. The Authority has employed interventions f{or
recycling, reusing and reducing waste at its premises e.g. use of reusable drinking
water bottles instead of the plastic tumbler cups, harvesting rain water to be used in
the [ish pond, reuse cnvelopes for internal dispatches.
Ecological Enhancement: The authority continues to participate through-
a) implementation of environmental CSR activities such as tree planting
campaign in areas such as Merguerra Primary School in Kajiado and Maji
Motto secondary school in Narok
b) Planting trees in CA’s remote stations and staff residential houses
¢) support Government initiative in enhancement of national forest cover
through joint tree growing programme at the Konza Technologies
Partnerships: Authority is committed in enhancing participation in National,
Regional and International Environment and Green ICT Initiatives through
partnership with EACO, ITU, NEMA among other relevant bodies.
Environmental Awareness: The authority has created sensitization programs such as
capacity development training for committee members, sensitization of all stalf on
Environmental mainstreaming, raise comprehensive awareness on ecological growth,

climate mitigation and pollution control in the corporate sector

(i) Employce welfare

The Authority is an equal opportunity employer with a gender ratio of 46:54 female to male

ration. As part of its affirmative action, the Author‘ity has prioritized disability

mainstreaming by making its work place accessible to persons with disabilities. As a

regulator in ICT, the Authority has incorporated a participatory approach in making
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regulations where industry and public stakeholders are widely consulted. In the Authority’s
current strategic plan (2018-2022), the 3 Key Result Area (KRA) is anchored on
Developing Capacity in order to ensure that the Authority’s employees are well skilled and

motivated to deliver on the Mandate.

In compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act (OHSA), the Authority has in place
a Health & Safety Policy that prioritizes zafety and well being of stall. It includes business

continuity, fire prevention strategies, emergency response and first aid.

(iv)Industry practises

a. Responsible competition practise

In tandem with the Constitution of Kenya (2010) the Authority is the ICT regulator that
is independent of control by government, political interest or commercial interests. Our
mandate is to ensure fair competition in telecommunications, broadcasting, postal&
courier sectors. It involves managing well the frequency spectrum and numbering
resources and ensuring that Consumers are protected including child-on-line protection.
The Authority is also actively involved in cyber-security being the focal point for the

Kenya Computer Incident Response Team (Ke-CIRT).

As part of corporate governance, the Authority’s board is guided by the Mwongozo
Code and the employees ensure compliance to the Authority’s Code of Conduct. Staff
are also required to sign an integrity oath as part of their commitment to abide by ethical

and professional standards of work.
b. Responsible supply chain and supplier relations

Excellent service delivery to our customers and stakeholders is paramount. The
Authority therefore has a Service Charter that stipulates expected quality service levels
when dealing with its stakeholders. The Authority maintains good business practices,
treats its own suppliers well by honouring contracts and respects payment practices as
guided by the Service Charter.

¢. Responsible marketing and advertisement
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(v) Corporate Social Responsibility/Community engagements

In executing its mandate, the Authority is committed to contributing to economic development

while improving the quality of life of local communities and the society at large.,

The Authority, through its Corporate Social Responsibility and Sponsorship programmes,
invests in the community as a responsible corporate citizen. CA carries out CSR. activitics
-

related to the ICT sector as well as other arsas as guided by the CSR policy.

As a responsible corporate cilizen, we rehabilitated a community borehole in Kalikwon,
Akirlamet sub-location in West Pokot County where the Authority has deployed a Base
Transceiver Station (BTS). Other activities supported included: Tree Planting: sponsorship ol
Kalasha Film festival; Annual Journalist Excellence Award: Mater Heart Run; Connected
Kenya Summit; Little sisters of the poor; Nyumba ya wazee and Kianda Schoo] Peperuka

Programme.

The Authority continued with its sponsorship of Talanta Football Club, which provides a team
of 24 young men, aged between 17 to 24 years with an opportunity to not only nurture their

talents but also make a living off their skills.
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XL

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year

ended June 30, 2022, which show the state of the Authority’s affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Authority is facilitating the development of the information and
communications sectors irsluding; broadcasting, cybersecurity, multizsedia,
telecommunications, electronic commerce, postal and courier services on behalf of the

Government of Kenya.

Results

The results of the entity for the year ended June 30, 2022 are set out on page 1to 31

Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown under part 1l
above. During the year 2022, Sen. Kembi Gitura, MGH resigned on 8" February 2022 and
Capt. Gilbert Kibe was appointed with effect from 13" May 2022.

Dividends/Surplus remission
In accordance with Section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations,
regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety percent (90%) of its surplus funds

reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Communications Authority of
Kenya; in accordance with Public Audit Act 2015 section 3 which empowers the Auditor
General to appoint an auditor too audit on his behalf.

By Order of the Board

...............

%l



Communications Authority of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

XII.  STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Public Finance Management Act 2012 Section 84(0) of the Kenya Information and
Communications Act of 1998 (CAP 41 I'A), and the Public Audit Act 2015, require the Directors Lo
prepare financial statements in respect of the Authority, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Authority at the end of the financial year/period. The Directors are also required to
cnsure that the Authority keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the operations of the Authority. The Directors are also responsible for safcguarding the assets and

funds of the Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Authority’s financial
statements, which give a true and [air view of the state of affairs of the Authority as at the end of the
financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2022. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be elfective
throughout the reporting period; (i) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Authority; (iii) designing,
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due
lo error or fraud; (iv) saleguarding the assets of the Authority; (v) selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies: and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

The Directors aceept responsibility for the Authority’s financial slatements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the KICA Act, PFM act and the Public Audit Act. The Directors are of the
opinion that the Authority financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Authority’s
transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2022, and of the Authori ty’s financial position
as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained
for the Authority, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Authority’s mmncml

stalements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES (Continued)

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Authority will not remain a

going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Authority’s financial statements ‘Were approved by the Board on..... lGlC“I l ...... 2022 and
signed on its behalf by: ( "‘;\)
N )
XS
S NX
Capt. Gilbert Kibe Ezed Chiloba —
Chairman Director General

xlii







REPUBLIC OF KENYA

HEADQUARTERS
Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.0. Box 30084-00100
NAIROBI

relephone: +254-(20) 3214000
E-mail: info@oagkenya.go.ke
Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY OF
KENYA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the

entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Communications Authority of
Kenya set out on pages 1 to 57, which comprise of the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

Report af the Auditor-General on Communications Authority of Kenya for the year ended 30 June, 2022



other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Communications Authority of Kenya as at
30 June, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Kenya Information Communications Act, Cap 411A (Revised in 2010) of
Laws of Kenya, and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012

Basis for Qualified opinion

Unconfirmed Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from non-exchange transactions
balance of Kshs 548,334,000 ass disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements. The
balances is net off cumulative provisions for bad and doubtful debts (general and specific)
totaling to Kshs.6,348,903,000. Included in the balance of Kshs.6,348,903,000 is an
amount of Kshs.3,060,718,138 which relates to the balance owed by Telkom Kenya
Limited. However, according to the letter Ref: TNT/ZZ/331/02 dated 29 June, 2020, The
National Treasury committed to pay the frequency spectrum for financial years 2019/2020
and 2020/2021despite the Management having provisioned for the bad and doubtful debt
in full. Further, records indicate that as at the time of this audit in December, 2022, no
money had been received from The National Treasury. In addition, as previously reported,
Telkom Kenya Limited vide, letter Ref: TKL/RA/CA/(LIC) dated 21 December, 2020
indicated a nil amount being owed to the Authority.

Management did not explain the varying details in the two sets of record.

In the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and fair statement of the receivables
from non-exchange transactions balance of Kshs.548,334,000 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIs). | am independent of the Communications Authority of Kenya
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAl and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Repart of the Auditor-General on Communications Authority of Kenya for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit Issues

Various prior year audit issues remained unresolved as at 30 June, 2022. Management
has not provided reasons for the delay in resolving the prior year issues. This is contrary
to Section 68(2)(l) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 which require Accounting
Officers to try to resolve any issues resulting from an audit that remain outstanding.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been

applied lawfully and in an effective way.
Basis for Conclusion
1. Unauthorized Short-Term Deposits

The statement of financial position reflects a cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.10,086,194,000 which, as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, included
short term deposits amounting to Kshs.477,049,000 held in two (2) local commercial
banks in the previous financial period. During the year under review, the Authority earned
interest totalling Kshs.461,445,000 on cash at bank and fixed deposits. However, as
previously reported, the deposits were made without approval of the Board contrary to
Section 21(1) of the Kenya Information and Communication Act, Chapter 411A that
requires all deposits placement to be sanctioned by the Board. Further, approval from
The National Treasury was not provided for audit review.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
2. Employee Costs - Irregular Acting Allowance

As disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the statement of financial
performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.1,221,212,000 under employees’ costs. The
expenditure includes an amount of Kshs.22,361,582 paid as acting allowances to sixty-
one (61) members of staff who served in vacant positions during the year under review.
However, fifty-four (54) of the staff had been in acting capacity for periods exceeding six
months with some dating as far back as 2015. This is contrary to the Authority's Human
Resource Management Policy and labour laws which require one to serve in an acting
capacity for a period not exceeding six months.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the laws.

Report of the Auditor-General on Communications Authority of Kenva for the year ended 30 June, 2022

3



The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors compliance with
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relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1) (a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
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those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, amongj other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

cPA Nz ACBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

05 May, 2023
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XIV. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021

Note Kshs'000 Kshs'000
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
License Fees 6 10,635,318 9,386,040
Revenue from exchange transactions
Finance income 7 708,867 461,445
Rental Revenue from facilities 8 ; 3,849 3,868
Other Income 9 49,794 2,041

762,511 467,353

Total revenue 11,397,829 9,853,393
Expenses
Employee costs 10 1,221,212 1,327,342
Remuneration of Directors 11 50,596 20,244
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 12 661,269 509,011
Repairs and maintenance 13 311,647 356,399
General expenses 14 1,981,495 3,243,540
Total Expenses 4,226,219 5,456,537
Other gains/(losses)
Gain on sale of assets 16 1,519 3.744
Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange transactio 17(a) 167.686 (10,861)
Additional Impairment General Provision ¢ 15 (757.225) (245,559)
Additional Impairment Specific Provision 2 15 (1.990,905) (779.365)
Bad Debts recovered 17(b) 0 0
Swrplus for the year 4,592,685 3,364,815
Remission lo National Treasury 26 3,982,499 3,028,334
Net Surplus for the year 610,186 336,482

The notes set out on pages 1 to 31 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
P4

Dircb’{or Gﬁeﬁmal : Director Finance & Accounts Chairman of the Board
Ezra Chiloba CPA. Joseph M. Kimanga Capt. Gilbert Kibe
ICPAK Membership No:4341
Date.,‘-fj.}.\.r.'. \303 Date:. OEJC)@)QO.’!; ............... Date:.. 05/9, f‘].*.?.‘“..f.i ..........
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XV.  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Note
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 19
Receivables from exchange transactions 20
Total Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 21
Intangible Assets 22
Total Non-Current Asscts
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Provisional Dividend/Remittance Surplus 23
Trade and other Payables from exchange transactions 24
Payments received in advance 25
Total Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets
Owners Equity 26
Accumulated Surplus 26
Revaluation-Reserve 27

Total Net asseis and Liabilitics

2022 2021
Kshs'000 Kshs'000
10,086,194 7.866.780
348,334 300,520
749,348 6177658
11,383,876 8,779,958
18,695,350 18,924,432
472,984 554,793
19.168,334 19.479.225
30,552,210 28,259,183
3,982,499 3,028,334
2,576,069 1,336,993
638,309 1,272,1 52
7.196,877 5,637,479
7,196,877 5,637,479
23,355,333 22,621,704
741,965 741,965
6,597,047 5,863,418
16,016,322 16,016,322
_ 23 355,333 22,621,704

'1‘11:.; Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 31 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Y4 &
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Director (_z(netgyl
Ezra Chiloba

-----------------------------

Director Finance & Accounts
CPA. Joseph M. Kimanga

ICPAK Membership No:4341
D"l‘LE ..... Qﬁflqz’\ {02y Date:

Chairman of the Board
Capt. Gilbert Kibe
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XVI. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
Owners  Revaluation  Accumulated Total
Equity Reserve Surplus Reserves
Note Kshs'000  Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000

At July 1,2020 741,965 16,016,322 5,639,516 22,397,803
Surplus for the year - - 3,364,815 3,364,815
Reversal of Impairment General Provision Allowance 13 P- -
Remittance to Treasury - Provision 23 - - (3,028,334) (3,028,334)
Prior year adjustments 26 (112,580) (112,580)
Additional Remmittance to Treasury-Paid - - - -
Revaluation Surplus 27 - - - -

At 30 June 2021 741,965 16,016,322 " 5863418 22,621,704
At July 1,2021 741,965 16,016,322 5,863,418 22,621,704
Surplus for the year - - 4,592,685 4,592 685
Reversal of Impairment General Provision Allowance 13 s« .
Remittance to Treasury - Provision 23 - - (3.942,499) (3.982,499)
Prior year adjustments 26 123,443 123,443
Additional Remmittance to Treasury-Paid - - -
Revaluation Surplus 27 2 R % &
At 30 June 2022 741,965 16,016,322 6,597,047 23,355,333

‘o

@

.

Dircct'c{r G'éx:laél
Ezra Chiloba

Director Finance & Accounts
CPA. Joseph M. Kimanga

ICPAK Membership No:4341

Date:..... 03”03! 20722

........................

-

Chairman of the Board
Capt. Gilbert Kibe
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XVII.  STATEMENT OF CASIH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021

Note Kshs'000 Kshs'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from/(used in) Opermtions 28 4,887,740 4,229,922
Remittance to The National Treasury (3.028.334) (4,294,200)
Directors [eces L 0 i w0
Net Cash generated from/(used in) Ope rations 1,859,406 (04,278)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2] (351,351) (175,732)
Proceeds from disposal of assets 16 2,492 3,744
Interest received 7 708,867 461,445
Net eash generated lrom/f(used in) Investing activitics 360,008 289,457
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,219,414 225,179
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,866,780 7,641,600
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 18 10,086,194 7,866,78{!_

The cash flow statement is (o be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements as set
out on pages 6 to 31.

R N o

Director Généfx{':?l_l_ ) Director Finance & Accounts Chairman of the Board
Ezra Chiloba CPA. Joseph M. Kimanga Capt. Gilbert Kibe

. ICPAK Membership No:4341
Date:.. 03’ C"’J s S Date:... 98 03’ A%% Date:....C “' 02 | RO2L
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XIX.

L

I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Communications Authority of Kenya is eslablished by and derives its authority and
accountability from Kenya Information and Communications Act, 1998 (Cap 411A). The
Authority is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The
Authority’s principal activity is licensing and regulation of the communications sector on
behalf of the Government of Kenya.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Authority’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except
for the measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and
equipment, and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated
recoverable amounts and liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)
allows the use of estimates and assumptions, It also requires management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Authority’s accounting policies. The financial
statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional
and reporting currency of the Authority.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act and
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies
adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30)
June 2022,

S LT T IiCEVERn e S e

Other Applicable: 1% January 2021:

Improvements a) Amendments to IPSAS I3, to include the appropriate references
to IPSAS to IPSAS on impairment, in place of the current references to

other international and/or national accounting frameworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Leases and [PSAS 17, Property, Plant, and
Equipment,
Amendments to remove transitional provisions which should
have been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of
Accrual Basis International Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSASs) was approved.
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¢) IPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS 26, Impairment of Cash Generating Assets.

Amendments to ensure consistency of impairment guidance to
account for revalued assets in the scope of IPSAS 17, Property,

Plant, and Equipment and IPSAS 31, Intangible Assets.

1 d) IPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis Tnterational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).
Amendments to the implementation guidance on deemed cost in

IPSAS 33 to make it consistent with the core principles in the
Standard.

i New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the
year ended 30 June 2022.

l

Staniaal - EeEve

\
IPSAS 41:

e bl g pale

Applicable: 15 January 2023:

Financial The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial
Instruments | reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and
useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of
the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an entity’s future cash flows.
IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29, by:

= Applying a single classification and measurement model for
financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset’s

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

» Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model
that is applicable to all financial instruments subject 1o

impairment testing; and

« Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens
the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model
develops a strong link between an entity’s risk. management

7
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strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as
part of the risk management strategy.

[PSAS 42: Applicable: 1% January 2023

Social The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

Benefits representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting

entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The
I information provided should help users of the financial statements and
general purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the entity;

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(¢) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity’s financial

performance, financial position and cash Mows.

Amendments | Applicable: 1st January 2023:

to Other a) Amendments to IPSAS 35, to update the guidance related to the
IPSAS components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted
resulting when IPSAS 41 was issued.

from IPSAS b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

41, Financial hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when
Instruments IPSAS 41 was issued.

¢) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting
for financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently
omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying
linancial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

it Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in year 2020/2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

h)

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

License Fees
The Authority recognizes revenues from license fees. The income is recognised
upon issuance of an annual operating license and frequency licence fecs.

Type approval and other fees are recognized as and when realised. Other non-
exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the Authority and
the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest income

The net Interest income includes interest realised on government securities,
placements, and bank balances.

Other Income

Type approval, penalties and other fees are recognized as and when realised. This
recognition is when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. Where
the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the
extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Budget information

The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and
income are presented in a single statement to determine the needs of the Authority as
well as the revenue to be generated. As a result of the adoption of the accrual basis for
budgeting purposes, there are no basis. timing or differences that would require
reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the amounts presented as a
separate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts.

Taxes

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the Authority operates
and generates taxable income. The Authority is tax exempt as per the Public financial
Management Act 2012 Regulations 2013 (219) (3). Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax legislations with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment arc
required to be replaced at intervals, the Authority recognizes such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is péiformed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Al other repair and
mainlenance costs are recognized in statement of financial performance as incurred.
Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The rates of depreciation used are based on the following estimated useful lives:

Tangible Assets Useful life  Rate
= Buildings and improvements 40 years 2.5%
= Plant & machinery 10 years [0%
» Radio equipment 10 years 10%
= Telecommunications equipment 10 years 10%
= Computers 3 years 33.3%
»  ICT Regulatory systems 5 years 20%
= Motor vehicles 5 years 20%
= Office furniture and fittings 8 years [2.5%
= Office equipment 5 years 20%

¢) Financial instruments

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through statement of financial
performance, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. The Authority determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Receivables are stated at original invoiced amounts,
less an estimate made of losses arising [rom impairment and recognized in the statement
of financial performance.

[mpairment of financial assets

The Authority asscsses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an (-:ntity ol
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has oceurred after the initial recognition

10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

¥ The debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty
» The probability that debtors will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization

» Observable datz”indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cast flows (e.g.
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at
fair value through statement of financial performance or loans and borrowings, as
appropriate. The Authority determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

fProvisions

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Authority expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net
of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

The Authority did not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Authority did not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset
whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority in the notes to the

11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

linancial statements. Contingent assets arc assessed continually to ensure that
developments arc appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Iit has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential
will arise and the assel’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue
are recognized inhe financial statements of the period in which the change crieurs,

g) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Authority creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. All
reserves are stated and outlined as per IPSAS 17 and IPSAS 1.

h) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Authority recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively.
The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

i) Employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

The Authority’s employees are eligible for retirement benefits under a defined contribution
plan provided through separate funds.

Contributions to defined contribution plan are charged to the income statement as incurred.
Any difference between the charge to the income statement and the contributions payable
is recorded in the balance sheet under other receivables or other payables.

i) Forecign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the prevailing rate of
exchange on the date of the transaction. Bank balances denominated in foreign currency
are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the
exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from this running balance in the
cashbook and the bank balance, are recognized in the statement of financial performance
in the period in which they arise.

j)Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either-finite or

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

indefinite. The rates of amortization used are based on the following estimated useful

lives:
Intangible Assets Useful life  Rate
e ICT General Office Software 3 years 33.3%
e ICT regulatory software 5 years 20%
e Telessmmunications software 10 years 10% i
s Radio Monitoring software 10 years 10%

k) Related parties

The Authority regards a related party as a person or an Authority with the ability to exert
control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Authority, or
vice versa. The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Authority,
holding 100% of the Authority’s equity interest.

1) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits
and liquid investments with an original maturity of twelve months or less, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various commercial
banks at the end of the financial year.

m) Budget information

The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income
are presented in a single statement to determine the needs of the Authority as well as the
revenue to be generated. As a result of the adoption of the accrual basis for budgeting
purposes, there are no basis, timing or differences that would require reconciliation
between the actual comparable amounts and the amounts presented as a separate additional
financial statement in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

n) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended
or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

0) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year-end with a significant
impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020.

13



Communications Authority of Kenya

Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Authority's financial statements in conformity with [PSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and [iabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could resull in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.
] Liks,

Estimates and ;iSsumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year,
are described below. The Authority based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.

However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may
change due to legislations, market or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Authority. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators
to inform potential future use and value from disposal:
* The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the
Authority.

* The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in
technology and processes.

* The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

 Availability of funding to replace the asset.

Changes in the market in relation to the asset.
Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted 1o present value
where the effect is material. Assumptions were used in determining the provision for bad

debtors based on long outstanding non-payment and various cancellations and
revocation, |

14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5 REVALUATION OF ASSETS

The Board of Directors approved the revaluation of assets report for adoption as at 12
July 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Description

2022

2021

IKshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Annual frequency license fees

8,958 651 7,951,554
Annual operating license fees 1,671,305 1,428,850
Application Fees 2,323 5,122
'I_'ype approval & Registration fees 3,040 ~ 513
Total Revenue trom Non-exchange Transactions : LQ,G?»S,SIS 9,386,040

This is income derived from regulating the communications sector in Kenya including;

broadcasting

7 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

. multimedia, telecommunications, electronic commerce, postal and courier services

Deseription el A

Kshs (000) Kshs (000)|
Cash Investments and fixed deposils 831,390 539,5%
Taxes -122.522 -78,084
Total Revenue from exchange Transactions 708,867 461,445

The Authority interest income is derived from investments in short term de

Tax deducted at source

8 REVENUE RENTAL FROM FACILITIES

posits and Withholding income

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Rental Income

3,849

3.868

Tatal Other Income

3,849

3,868

The Authority's residential properties are owner occupied and the rentals charged based

staff/economic rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 OTHER INCOME

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Sale oftender documents 23 16
Penalties " 49,771 2,000
Other Income ' 0 25
Total Other Income 49,794 2,041

This refers to other unclassified income and penalties charged on contraventions of

regulations

10 EMPLOYEE COSTS

Deseription 2022 ALl
Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Employee related costs - salaries and wages 896,156 999,472
Contribution to pensions 96,610 90,603
Travel and other allowances 111,085 115,488
Housing benefits and allowances 117,361 121,780
Total Employee Costs 1,221,212 1,327,342
11 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
G 2022 2021
Description
Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Sitting allowance 18,600 8,640
Monthly fees 712 960
Telephone allowance 3,760 2,743
Traveling Expenses 23,328 1,468
Board Welfare 563 2.097
Training-Directors 3,633 722
Director fees 0 3,615
Total Director emoluments 50,596 20,244
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12 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Depreciation & Amortization for the year 661,269 509,011
Pension Amortization 0 0
661,269 509,011
13 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
. 2022 2021
Description
Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Property 30,240 54,142
Equipment 264,826 295,742
 Motor Vehicks 16,581 6,515
Total Repairs and Maintenance 311,647 356,3@
14  GENERAL EXPENSES
: 2022 2021
Description
B Kshs (000) | Kshs (000)
Training 126,082 159,390
Enforcement & Compliance 193,913 111533
| Computer software 133,389 89,038
Corporate affairs 40,957 31,3 17 |
| Consumer Affairs 155,283 114,767 |
| Medical Expenses 82,275 77,182
Advertising _ 108,483 61,699 |
| Meetings and conferences 294,304 176,294 |
Exhibitions 27,860 54,134 |
Utilities 53,224 67,103
| Postage and telephone 22,972 8,444
Rent and Rate ) 27,210 23,4472
Consultancy fees 72,994 40,843
Accrued-Audit fees 1,491 1.49]
| Statutory Audit Fees 3,615 0
| Legal fees 75,619 28.729
| Bank charges 2,316 1,851
Security 62.479 90,136
Insurance 22,689 16,145
Printing and stationery 11,236 16,807
| House keeping 13,571 7,706 |
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Periodicals and publications 6,918 6,139
Staff welfare 101,087 89,843
Transport Expense 27,498 31.534
Subscriptions 103,585 107,544
Sporting Activites 12,723 3,162
Corporate Social responsibility 28,218 TAT
Universal Service Obligation 18.599 3,225
National Communications Secretariat 120,000 120,000
Communications Appeals Tribunal 10,000 9,528
The National Treasury : - 1,614,498
Digital Migration Expenses E =
Universal Advisory Council - 207
Research and Development 8,440 4,083
Certification Expenses 12,465 0
Total general expenses 1.98 5 3.243.540

15 RECONCILIATION FOR IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE ON RECEIVABLES

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

At the beginning of the year 3,600,774 2,575,850
Additional Impairment General Provision Allowance 757,225 245,559
Additional Impairment Specific Provision Allowance 1,990,905 779,365
At the end of the year 6,348,903 3,600,774

The Provision for impairment is as per the Policy (1Year - 25%, 1-2 Years - 50% & 2-3 Year - 100%). and
specific provision for impairment has been made of Kshs.1,990million in regards to Telkom
Kenya Limited and Airtel Networks Kenya Ltd,

16 GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS

Description

2022

2021

[shs (000)

Kshs (000)

Proceeds from disposal

1,519

3,744

Total Gain on sale of assets

1,519

3,744
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17 GAIN/LOSS ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)]

Gain/Loss on foreign Exchange

167,686

-10,861

Total loss on foreien exchange transactions

167,686

-10,861

The Autheority is exposed to forei gn exchange risk arising from cu rrency

with respect to US dollar. Such transactions lead either a gain or loss.

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

exposures, primarily

Deseription

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Current Account

10,086,194 7,389,731
1Short term deposits 0 477,049
Treasury Bills 0 0
Petly Cash 0 0
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent 10,086,194 7,866,780
18(B) CASII AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DETAILED ANALYSIS
Financial Tnstitution and Account N umber 2022 2021
Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Kenya Commercial Bank (A/c Number 1106738608)
Currrent Account 9.100.,423 7,297.017
Fixed deposits 0 0
Sub-Total 9,100,42_3 7,297,017
Citibank N.A. (Ac Number 300042015) KES
Currrent Account 258.301 49323
Treasury Bills 0 0
Iixed deposits 0 0
Sub-Total 258,301 49,323
Citibank N.A. (A/c Numbe 1 300042007)-USD
Currrent Account 160,840 13,750
Sub-Total 160,840 13,7SQ
Co-operative Bank of Kenya (A/c Number 01136151735800)
Currrent Account 566,630 29,641
Fixed deposils 0 477,049
Sub-Totai 566,630 506,690
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18 (C) SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Kenya Commercial Bank 0 0
Cooperative Bank 0 477,049
Treasury Bills 0 0
Total %" i 0 477,049
19 RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2022 2021

Desecription

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Licensee fee receivables 6,897,237 3,901,294
Impairment Allowance/ Provision -6,348,903 -3,600,774
Total non-current recievables 548,334 300,520
20 RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Description e ot
Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Deposits 8.604 8,604
Amount due from USF 0 27
Other Receivables 740,744 600,374
Accrued Interest 0 3,653
Total receivables from exchange transactions 749,.'3:5_1_8_ 612,653:
21 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
. 2022 2021
Description
Kshs (000) Ishs (000)
Property Plant & Equipment 19,869,123 19,800,509
Accumulated depreciation -1,173,773 -876,077
Total non-current assets 18,695,350 18,924,432

21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)|

Intangible software 1,308,819 1.030,573

|Accumulated depreciation 3 -835,835 -475,780
Total non-current intangible assets _ _ﬂ2,984 554,793

- 20212022 20202021
Intangible Assects at Cost Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Cost -

hAl; the beginning of the year 1,030,573 760, lﬁ

Tclcliticms 209,179 270,47;
Asset Retirement - & g
Asset Revaluation - ) -
At the end of the year 1,239,751 1,030,573

.‘ Works In Progress
At the beginning of the year - 231,073
Additions WIP 69,068 6,878
Asset Cﬂpitalfzecl - -221,002

- At the end of the year 69,068 16,948
Total Intangible at the end of the vear 1,308,819 1,047,521
Amortization and Impairment )

| At the beginning of the year 475,780 287,067
Asset Retirement - 16,948
Amortization for the year 360,055 188,713
Enorlizulicm at the end of the year 835,835 492,728
Net Book Values at end of the Year 472,984 554,793
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23 REMMITTANCE TO THE NATIONAL TREASURY

Description B 2021
Kshs (000) Kshis (000)
Provisional Remittance to The National Treasury - Prior year - -
Unrealized gains/losses adjustment (150,918)
Provisional Remittance to The National Treasury - Current year 4.133,416 3,028.334
Total Remiittance to The National Treasury 7;2’-_5282,499 3,028,334
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Description ARE 2021
Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Trade payables 609,646 279,806
Universal Service Fund Levy 561 565
Urban IT 225
The National Treasury 1,901,716 884,735
Accrued Expenses 2,982 4,473
Employee Remmittances 60,939 167,415
Accrued Taxes 0 0
Total trade and other payables 2,576,069 1,336,993
25 PAYMENTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
2 2021
Description Res
; Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Payments received in advance 638,309 1,272,152
26 ACCUMMULATED SURPLUS
2022 2021

Description

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

Accumulated surplus at 30 June 2022

6,597,047

Accumulated surplus at 1 July 2021 5,863,418 5,639,516
Surplus for'the year 4,592,685 3,364,815
Prior year adjustments 123,443 -112,580
Reversal of Impairment General Provision Allowance 0 0
Additional Remmittance to Treasury .0 0
Provisional Remmittance Surplus (90%) -3.982,499 -3,028,334

5,863,418

]

L]
L)1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27 REVALUATION SURPLUS

Description

2022

2021

Kshs (000)

Kshs (000)

New value of Assets 16,016,322 19,364,357
Original value of Asscts ) 0 -3,348,035
Revaluadio surplus at 30 June 2020 1.‘_&1{)16,322‘ JG,DIG,SZEI
28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
. 2022 2021

Description

- Ksbs (000)  Kshs (000)|
Swiplus before remmittances 4,592,685 3,364,815
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 661,269 509,011
Loss/Gain on sale of assets -1,519 -3,744
Foreign Exchange Gain or Loss 0 10,861
Amortisation of Pension 0 0
Interest Received -708,867 461,445
Addttional Impairment Provision Allowance 2,748,130 1,024,924
Bad Debts recovered/Reversal of Bad debt Provisions 0 0
Additional Dividends Remmittance 0 1,614,498
Retained Earnings Adjustiments 123,443

7,415,141 6,058,921

Working capital adjus tments
(Decrease)/Increase in receivables fom non-exchange transactions -2,995,944 -1,015,160
zaecx'eascjllncl'ease in receivables from exchange transactions -136,690 -16,775
(Decrease)/Increase in payments received in advance -633,842 671,497
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables 1,239,076 -1,468,559
Net Worling Capital Changes -2,527,400 -1,828,998
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,887,740 4,229,922

29  CREDIT RISK

(i) Credit risk

The Authority has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk
unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises fr

that a counterparty will be

and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables.

26
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The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for
doubtful receivables, estimated by the company’s management based on prior experience
and their assessment of the current environment. The carrying amount of financial assets
recorded in the financial statements representing the Authority’s maximum exposure 1o
credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as
follows: '

The board of directors sets the company’s credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

:I Total Amount Fully Past Due
Performing

Deseription Kshs (000) Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
At 30 June 2022
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 548,334 493,501 54,833
Receivables from exchange transactions 749,348 734,361 14,987
Total 1,297,682 1,227,862 69,820
At 30 June 2021
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 300,520 270,468 30,052
Receivables from exchange transactions 612,658 551,392 61,266
Total 913,178 821,560 91,318

29(B) LIQUIDITY RISK
(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Authority’s directors, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Authority’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Authority manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
flows. The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative
financial liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12

months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Less than1 1-3Months|Over 5 Months
Month

Description Kshs (000) Kshs (000) Ishs (000)
At 30 June 2022
Trade payables and other payables 2,576,069 2,318,462 257,607
Surplus Remittance 3,982,499 3,982,499 =
Total 6,558,568 6,300,961 257,607
At 30 June 2022 ‘
Trade payables 1,336,993} 1,203,294 133,699
Surplus Remittance 3,028,334 3,028,334 0
Total _4-‘;365,327 4,231,628 ES,GQE’
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29(C) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
and foreign exchange rates which will affect the Authority’s income or the value of its holding
of financiz! instruments. The objective of market risk management;is to manage and control

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

There has been no change to the Authority’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
a) Foreign currency risk
The Authority has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases
of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
denominated in foreign currencies are paid afier 30 days from the date of the invoice and
conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate, The carrying

amount of the Authority’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets is as follows:

The Authority manages foreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions by
projecting for expected revenues and matching the same with expected payments and

maintaining a minimal balance in the foreign currency.

Description 2022 2021

USD (000) USD (000)

At 30 June 2022
Current Account Balance - Citibank 1.365 164

28




Communications Authority of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Authority’s financial condition may be adversely affected
as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The company’s interest rate risk arises from
bank deposits. This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk
exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company’s deposits. To manage

the interest rate risk, management %75 endeavoured to bank with institutions that offer
g

favourable interest rates and are regulated by the Central Bank of Kenya.

30 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safeguard the Board’s ability to

continue as a going concern. The growth is largely due to the net effect of the revaluation

reserve of Kshs. 16 billion. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

L 2022 2021
Description
Kshs (000) Kshs (000)
Retained earnings 6,597,047 5,865,418
Capital reserve 16,758,287 16,758,287
Total funds 23,355,334 22,621,704
Total borrowings 0 0
Less: cash and bank balances 10,086,194 7.866,780
Net debt/(excess cash and cash equivalents) 13,269,140 14,754,925
Gearing 57% 65%

29




Communications Authority of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

[n the course of the Authority’ operations the Authorily enters into transactions with related
partics. These entities have ability to exercise significant influence over its operating and
financial decisions. These include

1) The National Government;

i) The Ministry of Information Communications and Technology;
ii;s  The National Treasury;

iv) Board of directors;

V) Management

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Authority, holding 100% of the
Authority’s equity interest.

2
Description 2022 2021

Kshs (000) I<shs (000)

Transactions with related parties
1) IKey management compensation

Directors’ emoluments ‘ 51,862 20,244 |
| Compensation to the CEQ 15,931 14,181
Compensation to key management 84,504 84,051
Loans to CEO and key Management : 71,614 46,732
| Sub-Total _ 223911 | 165,208
b) Other Entities
The National Treasury 1,901,716 884,735
Amount payable to USF 561 565 |
Sub-Total  1,902277 885,299
Amount receivable from USF 0 27 |
Sub-Total 0 27 |
~ Total _ ] 2,126,189 1,050,534

32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Description e 4]

Kshs (000) ‘Kshs (000)
Surplus 4,592,685 3,364,815
Remmiltance surplus (90%) -3,982 499 -3,028,334
Net Surpius © 610,186 336,482

30



Communications Authority of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A

34

36

37

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are on-going litigations out of the ordinary course of the business of the Authority.

The litigations are part heard and, accordingly no contingent liabilities are anticipated in
respect of the same that may be quantified. The cases below may incur some costs in the
litigation processes.

High Court Civil Case No. 2071 <f 2000; M-Link Communications Ltd vs. CCK &
Telkom Kenya Ltd. The plaintiff is seeking damages based on a Trial Agreement with the
defunct.

The directors believe, based on the information currently available, that the legal matters

above are not likely to have a material effect on the results of the Authority’s operations,

financial position or liquidity. Therefore, no provision has been made in the financial

statements.

SURPLUS REMISSION
In accordance with the Public Financial Management Act 2012 Regulations 2015 (219)

(3), regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus
funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.
ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The Authority is an Independent Government Agency under the Ministry of Information
Communications and Technology. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.
Owners® equity of Kshs. 741.965 million is comprised of the net of assets and liabilities
vested to Communications Authority of Kenya by the Government of Kenya following the
split of the defunct Kenya Posts and Telecommunications Corporation through legal notice
Number 155 of 5th November 1999.

Currency .
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.)

31



eAuay woyRL 01 fleaw [jeys Lnseal] [euonen AL,
Spumy 2y welqo 0} ¥ ay Jof saunpasaid ay) pue aep
NP Y1 USAIMOH  "0Z0T 283k Jo 20uapuodsanios sarpes

| A Ul papiwo u2aq Jel JBY) 193p JS[) A3 JO AAIsn[oul

SIUNOWE A1) pajedipul pAUY WOY2] pue Ainseal]
[BUOHEN Ayl woa sipa] juanbasqns sy ¥

"KINSP3L ], [BUOTIEN] 3L ] 0] 1q3p JO Jajsuen Surpuiq
AJ|eSa] pue 2[qEa2UOIUI UE JO 20USSqR ‘3duay “Ainseal L
[BUOLEN 2y, s dIySUONERIAT OU i papwT eAuay
WOyl d) Ag piay A[dAIsnoxe 2B pue a[qeiaysury
1ou aue saamnosal fousnbayy pue asuadi v iy

V1 XaUUY Se pauoeye AUy Woy|a [ 0] Spunj (1A
0] JUAUNILIIOY AINSBAL] [BUOIEN SUL LELFOCBLL
'SUSY O] Sununowe 1qap woya ], Al Jo 946/ Sulurewar
oyl opraord 03 quopnud 11 pawoap JuaRFRURY
'spuny epiosd 0} (goz eunf g7 uo  paaladal
2ouapuodsaliod Anseal] [euonenN oyl audsag ‘T

TO0ELG08 1 11T TR0, papiaoad

"1Z0T/0T0T

PUB (Z0T/610T sieak
JRIDURLL] 3] JO] S23]
wnaoads fouanbaig
12400 01 paninbai
Aauow Jo Junouie
A paiwi eAuay|
wioyja L 03 apraoad o}

12133] “apia parun eduay] woya] ‘pamodal |
Ajsnorsaad se ‘uonippe uf ‘Ainseal],
JBUOHEN 3 |, WO PAAIadal uaaq pey Louow
OU *[ ZOE J2qISA0N UL IIPNE Siyl Jo awi

31} 18 SB 1Byl 2JBOIPUI SPI0dAT T2YLN,] (0]
UL Iqap njiqnop puw peq 2y} 10} pauoisiacad
surary Juawadeuey syl 21dssp [ Z0Z/0702
puz ZOZ/610¢ Steak [e1oueul] ayl 10J 533
wnnaads Aotanbaiy 12402 03 pasinbar Lauow
Jounoure ay) pajiwi eAuady woya,,

01 opiaoid 01 pajniunuos £1nseai], [euoneN
UL 0TOT “2unf 6 parep g0/1 €6/ ZZ/LNL
=Je 19112] 01 FUIPIOIdE “I2ASMOY

‘panwir] eAuay woyja Aq pamo sougfeq |
SUI OF SB[ YIAYM OEL'G0S 11T “T'SUSH

Jo unouure ue si suoisiaoad aanejnuwmo ay
Ut pApn[auL “000 FLL 009 € sysy 01 Suif|eio
(o11r0ads pue [e1auad) s1qap [njiqnop

pue peq 1oj suoisiacid aAizenWND 110

12U S[ AdUR[Eq AU} ‘SIUDWII]L]S [BIDUBLI] AU} O
61 10N Ul pIsO[asip 5y *[ZOT aunf Qg Je se
SUGTIOBSUEI] JBUBYIX2-UOU WOLJ SI[qRAIINAI

papiaoad Usaq awill Jsa0 sey 1qap paywr] eAuay woy@] | paniwwos Lmsear) J9PUN (OO 0TS D0 SYSY JO 2ouefeg
asuodsay VA/d | 01 uonejas st jusuniedwr Joy uosiaoid ay I [BUOLEBN 3], | ® s1oayjal uoiisod [eIouRUL] JO JUSLISILIS Y ],
autey snjelg | juiog
QWL | Juaian) | [ud0y asuodsay JudwaGeurpy SANSS] Ay uondg paytengd) jo siseg

"PaAj0sal 2q 01 sanssi ayy poadxa am Yoy

M UIYIIA WY W PRIRIOOSSE AU A MO[I UMOYS SB SINSS| SNOLEBA 3L} JA[0SI 0] suosiad

[ES0] PRIBUILUOU AABL 24 “IO}PRE 341 01 Papracid 21am 181} SJUSWILOD JuswiaFeusw pue “1oupne [BLLIAIND 211 Aq pasiel sansst o A1pununs ayl s1 Suimojoy ay

SNOLLVANIWINOOD T HOLIANY 40 dl MOTTOA NO SSTAD0U 1 XIANAIIV

TT0T ‘0€ Aunp papud 1eadk i) 10g
Sjuawalel§ [eduLuly pue poday [pnuuy
BAUIM JO JLIOYNY SUOLEIIUNLILIO )



en
(o8]

JIpIE AL JO U} 1) I8 S¥ PISSAPPE 24
01 124 arom sanssi 1eak Joud Sumoljo] ay L
SONSS] ABI X J0LIJ

£l

Amseal ],
[eUOIEN Ul Jo aimeis Jo  AousBe  JUAUILISACD
I2UIOUR U0 102Jj2 0} WSIUBLDISL JUILIR0IOJUD OU SEBY
WO Ayl puB JUSUNILUIWOD 4] pajouot] jou sey Anseal],
[RUOIIEN AU ‘JI9ASMOH  "JUSWIIWIWOd Jf Buneseial
] Xauuy SB payoeNe gZog Alenuwl iyl paieQ
192 AInseal] [euonenN 2y wolj asuodsal ay [, g

"¢][ Xouuy Se payoepe
1Z0T 12qWi309( LT Parep panwi] eAuay woyRL o
9]0 PUBLIR(] JUS231 1SOW 2], "Papul] eAudy] woyja ]
ynm 1gap ay) ensind o) sieak ¢ ised 2 ul sydurye
[P12Aas opew A[[nJSSa0ansun Sel| JUIWSSRUR C

‘paijroads jou aiam paliwi

“PI00A1 JO $198 OM] DU} Ul S[1Bap Buldiea ay)

paute[dxa Jou ey Juawaguuepy ALoyiny
aly1 01 pamo Fulag Junowe [iu pARepUl TOT
“laquiaze( [T paep (DI VO/VINML J2d

WL}
dulLy,

snelg
JuLIND

o g
[0

asuodsay] juauaseueyy

5aNSS] A3

uoluid(y payieng) Jo siseg

ZZ0T “0€ 2unp papua 1eak a1} 104
SIUAWIAIEIG [erueul] pue jioday [enuuy
eAuay] Jo APIoIPINY SU0NEIUNUWI0))




SalfIqesip
s suostad puw ‘wawopn ‘ipnox
10]  UODEAIISAI  SIVAIIS  PIje[al
pPuUE JUIABEUR[Y JUIAT Sunedpul
UL J JUIWAINIOAJ-] Xouuy

(U015 10 pjoysaiy) payjoads e urgiia
dnod3 1a31e) pauyap B 01 apise 19s
| SAVUAIIS pUB SYIoM “Spoos ainooud o)
aouasafard aAISNIND SUBAW V(IVdd s®
,SUOTIRAIDSI, Saufigesip il suosiad
pue ‘uawo “YPNoA I0] paalasal uasq
Pey S30IAISS pale[al pue JuawaBeuruw
WAAT I2SRUBWE JUSAZ UE JO SIDIAIIS
ay pamnnbar Qwoyny 2y ‘siunaoyg
2yl Jo 1o2ee 104 -sanuno)) odfuneg
pue gisng “LaAN Cwamey ‘ewoSung
Ul SWIIO)  uoneInpa  Jawnsuo))

TWOTNAL T "SYSM
JO poysatiy
IjqeMO[E

L} SUIPIAIXND
juauaanao.xd

Jo poraw
suoneionb xof
1sanbad ysnoan

| papa2oxa JUNowWe Japua) ay) Ja4 Justuainaoid

Ul LY OBYLY JO] 20IAIDS JUAWAFTEURLL
1U2A2 JO 193dsal Ul uLy Japous o) pred
S66 00T "SYsY JO Junoue ue sapnjour
(000°80%°S6 "SYsH Jo gy i 1atpung

"MAIA2IE JIPNR 0] pajleAe

sea Japiaoad 291a1as 21 pue Auogny

3} Li2am]aq 1DBLOD [BULIGY pausis

ou “UoIppE Uy "¢10g IOV [esodsi(] 1985y
pue JU2L2IN2044 1[I 0 AIBIUOD SI SI ]
"UOIHAL T "SUS3H JO P[oLsaltp a[qeamof[e ay)

Jo poyraw suoneonb Jof sanbar ySnoay
pagnuapl sem Japiaoid 201A410S as0Lm

910C 12qUWSAON [ ] UO piatf twnioy L]

s, A1I0une 21 Sunnp s201A135 watUafeueul
JUDAD JO ISOD BUIAq OGS ZOE'C] "sysy
sapnjout 0s[e B0 Z0F C6 "SYSH JO NGy ay |,
'Sirepje

Jawmnsuod jo 12adsar ul g0 80F cs SYSY
Jojunowe ug Sapnjoul poo 111696 1 Sysy
J0 2in31) sasuadxa [eIaud 2y} Sjuawuale]s
JRIDURLILT A1[) O] 7 210K Ul PasSOasIp S

121 mo Aues o1 pauuerd 179107 D9 zOe T S2TAIIS JUAMASCURTAT JUAAT ']
1o uepd Juawamooid 31 yBncayl eduay *SUSY JO pABME
Jo Quoyiny  suouedunuiuo’) UL 1T J9pual AL SPOTIATA] JUIWAINDOA ] JBNBALIT |
aunej smyelg | jwog |
AW | Judaany [E20 | asuodsay JUIWABLULTA] | sanssy Aoy uorurdQ pagieng) jo siseq |

ZT0T ‘0E dunp papud Jead ay) .10,
SIUAUWIM IS [BRURUL] put Loday] [enuay
eAuadf Jo HLIOYINY SUOLLIIUNUINI0))



*S101B1093(]
Wwng S/ 0} papieme  pue  SapgIqesicq
Uls SUOSIa pue usuiop ‘(pnojp jo dnois
paBejueApesip J2pun palnsiaal swuyy jo sy
Amseal] [euoijeN 2y ] Suisn paiapusa) auojaiay)
sem  JuawaSeuewl  JuaA2  Joj  Jepudl eyl Tl

11X Hed Japun ui Joj papiaoad
se sdnosd 1o suosiad Jo sauo3aizo ‘suosiad
ap  JO  uonedyides  pue  uonesiyijenbaid
‘uoneNsIzaY {(e) 101 ajqisucdsal
a0 [[BYS UOIym 19V SIY) Japun SUOHBAIasAl
pue ssouarjaid oyl jo uoneuswR|dun
10} a[qisucdsal 2q 0] JBLIRIRINSS SUOHEAIIS2I
pue ssuasajaid v azijeuoneiedo |jeys Lnseal]
[euoleN YL ., (L1) L] uonoeg Y [esedsig
$1258Y PuB JUSWAN00IJ d1jqngd Jo uoisiaoid

aup Jad se saIqeSIp Ypsm suosiad pue uamiom ‘pajieae : L10T dunf ¢ PIPUa J83A 3

10} LSS ECH EE "SYSH Sujeioy anmyipuadxa

ynod Jo L1o8a1ed 2y u sdnous padeiueapest Ol SBAL
mw h._:hwmu; L _m“o:mh u.g 1 £Aq _uM‘Em_“mE ﬂum“ b_,___u:ﬂz{ a3 Jo Ayopdoud sy wguod 0} 2|qissod
’ | o 122 JoU SBY )1 ‘SI0ULISWNAID 213 U]
pey TRy} SULL) (] WO4) SpLg papaul AjLoyny 096‘T0E El
sy ‘adojasayl  Csaunioddo  juswiainaold "SUSY fnue Sunnooid
WAWURAOD 01 ssa0oy  ul ajedioned Jo sioel1023(] SUJ} JO SIOENUOD [[B :mmw pue sacidde
01 sway  padaysidaypayijenbaid  jou  pey WG S/ 01 1201110 Sununoooe ue salnbar yarym
fuoyny 2y awi 3y 1y Auno) ewosung pue £Loyny ¢107 19 [esodsip jasse pue Juawainaod
Ul Wniol  uonednpa  Jlwmsuol 10 S| 21}) U2amIaq arjqnd a3 Jo (31§ uoKdas 0} Arenuod
PAOUSWILOY ALIOWINY ) ‘9[ T JRQUAAON U] ['T'1°1 wenuo) Tl U215 e 10BNUOD PauFIs B InOLIIm BISng
ey SIS juog
auly | Judaany) Ll | asuodsay] Juawaseuryy sanssy &3] uorurd g pampieng) jo sisegqg

TZOZ 0 2ung papua Jead i3 10
sjuawalelg [epueul pue poday [enuuy
vAuay Jo ALI0INY SHONEBIIUNWI0)




€10z LoV VAVdd
(1} g€l uonaag pue ()([)py uonpag 2yl jo
Poysaiyl aup) s1ealu 11 se saiaed Suippiq 1oeauo
[EULICT ® 51 2DUBISUL SI1L Ul Japuo aseqound 2y

| SA01B.1033(] WNG S/ 0} LO] 3P0
aserpung  pue gana3| auedaddy-f xouny

ssa20ad  Supppudy Ay jo S1URWINI0P
ap jo sardeo pue )s1 2yJ-¢ Xauuy

13119 aoueidaoon a2 BulAa021
{134 Q9CTOE EL "SUSY JO SI0IRI003( UG S/
0] fgglaepio aseyaind pansst Aoyiny ay

PIq 0} pajlAuL AINSEAL ], [RUOLEN]
AL AQ pau9sisol SULI Jo ISIT-7 Xouuy

awray __

auy, |

snjelg
ALY

[eaog |

asuodsay juomwaBeuvyy

SINSST Ay

uoturd(y payipeng) jo sisug

TTOT 'S dUNp papus 1uak 3y 10
S10AWRG (el uRHL] put Joday [enuuy
eAUIM JO AJLIOUINY SUOEIUNUITO)



SIUIUNIOP $5320.1d 12U} Y [ -9 X2UUY

SN
pwofung ul SalAlOR SO 2 Jo goune|
pue EISNE Ul WNOJ UOHEINPY  12WNSU0D
1D] 2y Suunp palejal pu JusWdFeRUBW
waa2 aplaoid 0] paBedus sem wMlp 2l
ons Se pue L AU} Aq PalaAod aq 0] SuoiZal
al) JO QWS SB SaNUN0D) BWIOBUNG pue Bisng
PEY $320]q PapIBME Y] "SIVIAIAS pPIle|al pue
Juatuafeuew uaAs apiactd 01 pasapual Sulaq
219 JBLI SYOO[q U2ADS (L) 31 JO U0 papieme

SeaL 2I001UL] S/JA] PUB PAEN[RAD 202Mm SPIQ SYL T'CT'T

53J1A13S JUR WS RHEW
JUDAD I0] JUDWISHLIIAPE JIPUI} Y [-C XdUUY

* 07 19quiada(] 1S T uo Fulag Japud) ay)
10 212p SUISO]O B )M G (T J2QUIBAON ST Uo
uonep Ajre 2 ul paoe|d seam JUILUASILIDADE
Uy Aunon) ewolung Ul SANIALOR YSD
811 JO 1oune| pue wisng Ul SWNIOJ JIWNSUGD)
1] Aunod S 10]  JURWRTRUBW  JUIAR

ue Jo S201A095 2yl paumbar Auoyiny UL '€

“JaRIIuod
paugis
B Inoyim
eisng ui
nny oeyin]
10] 9214125
BT
a2
Jo 1oadsas wr
WLy Jayjoue
o} pied
866°0E1°0T
‘SUSY|

Jo junowe uy ¢'1°]

awe.yy
aun,

smeg
2N

jurog
feaog

asuodsay] yuamwaSeuLy

|

sanss] A

uoruidQ pauijeng) Jo siseg

|

ZZ0Z “0€ 2unp papua a4 I} A0
SJUAWA)E)S [RIoUBUL] puk Joday] [enuuy
AU Jo QLIOINY SUOREIUNWWo]



"saned 0q uo Fuipuiq
1OBIUDD JO SUOIPUOD pue SULd) 2yl pargioads yaigm
S13pio aseyamnd e panssi AJLOQNY U1 2duay LIdAl3p
Jo uonedyuad wodn juswded oyouen oj3uis pue
sajqetaarjap arads yum ‘sqol awm (suo) siam asayl

vuosung
Ul SOUIARRE ¥SD JO qauneT  J0f £4'696°095°T
"SUSI JO LOF] I9PI0 ISEYDINJ WIIOJ nmyry
OOBNID visng J0f (8 I9FF6S'8T SUSH Jo
9951 12PIQ ISEYIN 208 §66°0CT ‘0T SUSH 0
SuUnUNOWE s1apao aseyaind o4 Y-, XouUUY

" ARIBPUI) [NJSSA20NS AU
pue &3nua Surnooad 2y) jo 130150 Sununoooe
A Aq Bupum ul pazuoyine  J3oijo
ue 1o Jaoyjo Sununoosoe 2y Ag paudis aq
[Ieys 10Bnuod yons pue sanaed 2yl usamiag
sjuawaarze (@ Sunesodioour  juswnoop
1OBIU0D © JO 2IJRUSIS 3L SN0y} pauLijuos
29 [BYS JOBIUOD B JO 20LUDISIND AL, SIIBIS
yaiym (1) Sguonass vavdd tod se [pisuan
1019211 2} Aq pausis 2o YoIysm 21091UN)
S/l 01 sk2pio sseyound omg pansst Ajoyiny
AU JUIWIFLTUI JO SUOMIPUDI puR SULI)

PEU Uolym “4ajjo 2l Jo adumdande wodn €'l

ey
auip, |

snjeIg
JuaLing)

g
[230]

asuodsay juawaseueyy

sanssy Aa[

uotuidgQ patyeng) Jo siseq |

ZTOT “Q€ Aunp papua aual ay) 10y
SJUAWAE]S |enueul] pue Loday enuuy
LAY JO AJLI0ANY SHONEIUN L)



- dweaaa 01 uSiedweo juawascxdwn  ARATEp

3o Bupuud pue uSisap Jo  AmwSaes Ay
w1 saznddns paaisiSar (1) uag 2yl Jo Isi| ay
wioy skeme 2418 papuesq jo Ajddns pue udisap
10} SpIq payiaul AJLOUINY A SpaeSal SIp Ul §71°71

910z/S10Z ueld Judwaandoad 31 ] -§ Xouuy

O10T/E 10T
a0y uepd juowamooid oy w umoys se sdnoid

paSejueapesip ap £q Jopual JOJ PaAtesal usaq
pey sdeme 2415 papuelq 10 Ajddns Joj sepuai aqL €171

‘pannbail uaym pue se (OJO V) sanmunioddo
JUWAN00AJ JUSLILLI2AOD) o1 §5200Y
Jopun ojedropaed o) ssaurpeal ul o saniiqesip
yuam uosiad pug uatom YINOA AQ paumo suil
paiaisiSar aepua) uado ysnoay Auoyny YL 71Tl

"$3]00¢2)0U
[ends  pue  sejjaaqum  papnoul  yaiym
Avme aa18 papueiq jo Ajddns pue Sunuud sem
PAAJOAL SIIIALDE BU] JO AU "JOUNE| [BLI21XZ
puw [BWI2jUl J0q SupEMapun pue Jaueyo
201125 S Aoy JO BUIPURIGRE  PAAJOAL
SILL CAlIOYINY Yl unfiim LI9AI[Ep 23LARRS

aoiatas v juawepdun o3 pauuepd 910g/S10T
agal qeioupuyy  ap Suunp  Auoyny Ayl 11T

‘apnjudei
yons

10 10B11U02

E 10} poyla
Suiapuay
Suruado

10 peaisul
uoneionb 10]
1sanbar ysnoayy
paygnuapt
papuelq

Jo K12A1]2p pue
£jddns “Bunund
‘ugisap

2y 10J ()

LOLLE TISUSY ['T']

‘sysy Jo 2unSy sosuadxa [RI2usE oY) “1ayung

2q 10UUED S2DIAIAS AOUR][NSLOI-UOU 10
sydom ‘spood jo Auuenb painbal ay) uaym
pue Japua) uado ySnoay) ojul pasajua aq
AJUO UED 1ORIUGD JIOMIWEY B Jey) sapiacid
oI G107 10V [esodsi 19ssy pue
JUWIND0L] 1[qngd 2u1 Jo ([ )] [ uonoes

0] £IENUOD SUOP SEA JORNLOS JIomaweL])

0] 25uryD 2y [, "JUWAITEA0RNUCD
yromawel) e 0} {jddns Jjo suo woay 10euU0d
Jia1p Supoagye sasueyd Jayung payou

2lam Japua) AL PapIEME 21am YIIym

SULLIL) 92443 AU} [[2 £1(T 2unf 1T uo Jei}
PajeaAal UDIBULIOJUL A[(B]IEAR “JaASMOH

‘apmugew

Yons JO JOBUCD B 0] POLfall Suliapua)
Suiuado jo peajsur suonejonb 1oy 1sanbal
ySnoay) pagnuap SULIj a211} Aq syoogqajou
[ends pue sgjjeiqumn Suipnjoul Aeme 2A1S
papueiq jo A1satjep pue Ajddns ‘Fupuud
‘uBisap 2l 10§ OLOLLG T "SUSH] sapnjoul
Os[e Q00 '§0F"S6 "SUSH JO Junowe |
“SJUSLLIBIES [BISUBULJ 21} 01 7] 210U Japun
SalJIE JAMNSU02 JO J0adsal ut §0‘80y S
'SUSY] JO JUNOWE UE SapRjoul 000° 1 11°696'1

Sy papueag Jo LRAIP(
pue Ajddng ‘Sunuiig ‘usisdq T'T

aweay
awy L

SHJEIS
Jua.LInD

o
[eaog

_

asuodsay] JuamdSeusy |

sonss] Ay

uorurdQ payiend) jo siseg

ZTNZ *0E dung papua aeak afy 104
S)UDUIYB)G [edueuly pue uoday] jenuny
rAU2Y 10 AJLIOYINY SUOLEIUNWIGD)




900z uonengay jesodsip 1asse
| PUB JUAWAIND0A] 2M|qid JO NINBA Ploysay]
fd se w AoSae]) Joj ploysadyl  uipiim
Seav anjeA QU CSAN[IQESIP yum suosiad
pue uswom Yok Aq Fuuapudl aannadwios
JOf 19S sea SABME QAIS  popurig  2inooad
|

! 01 oualafaud aarsnjoxa Aqaloym paIoLgsal sem

pasn Juawiainaoid Jo poylatl QAU Y Y[
‘opendosddy

[pue  porproads  se  spoylow  uLlURmaoad
.u}_.meEE ayl uo paidde ag qreys sisy ooyl
'spaau Juatamaodd s 01 SUIpIOJOE $207AI9S
10 $3i0a0 ‘SPOOS JO saLI0821e0 o1jidads snouea
up  sjumjjnsuod  pue  siojoenucd  Csianddns
paiisizal  Jo si1sip oepdn Ajsnonunuod
pue ulzjuigw  [[Eys uoNOuUN]  JUawWIno0Id
Jo peay ayg (1) 1L 10V |esodsiq siessy pue
JURLI2IN2044 A1jqng yua asuejduwos uy st s
S[eLId)EW

| ajeaodiod jo Sunurid pue usisap jo LioSaud
) wr saarpddns pasaysiBaa jo SiT-g Xouuy

"sjelew 21eiodiod

I ol |

S TET

‘pAULIIUOD

aq 10U PO £ [T unf [IHE papua teak ayp
105 QLO°LLGT] "Sys Buljjeo) anyipuadxa
Jo Aandoud 24 pue aep 2yl Jo yoearg

ui s1 Auogny ) ‘Apjuanbasuo)y jualiaaise
AU olul SULIALD JO W} 20} 18 paUIliialep

AUE.I}
UL

SNIB}g
JI2.LIND

juto |
[eoy |

asuodsay] JuawAs ULy

sanss 423]

uojurdy patpieng) jo siseq

TZOT 'O uUnp papua aead an) dog
SjULIS [eueul] pue Jioday [enuny
EAUAN JO MJLIOYINY SUODEIUNWWo)



suad papur.aq jo Ajddus

10§ 000°0S SUSY Jo poywr] (Vd) 129sa]

UWALOIA  636] A2PIQ dselpang-g] Xouuy

spaiys ojod papueag| ‘spays
-1 MJ2U puno.d papuelg ‘sujpLuIn papuBig
Jo Ajddns 10} (pF°998°T SUSM JO paanwlY
CIPIIAl ZZEIS] LGl AOPIQ ISBYIN-T] X3uuy

SI2Y21)S 100]] PIPUE.L] “H00ogajou
jeaids  papueag ‘spedasnowr  papuelg Jo
Apddns 10§ gL g0L "SUsH Jo paynur Aueduro)
JEAUSYINTA §F6T A9PIQ ISVRINJ-(] Xouuy

"AIDAT[2P AW-2U0
iyl 10} Siaplo 2y) panssi Ljuo Aoy ayL
‘pajustuapdwl jou Sem JUAWAAIFE omawel]
01U J2JU2 0] UOLEPUIWIWIOIAL A} “IASMOH

"SIINIOJ I3WNSU0D pue Melodiod snoLea
10) pepeau aram Jeyy Leme soald jo Ajddns
10} Juswe2aise Jo 2 Ojul SulPUR JO awl
a) 12 sfeae aa1 oy Jo sennuenb pannbal
Al auluIRRp jou pnod Quoyny ayl jey)
198] 31 £q PAULIOJUT SEM 1HAWIAITE HI0MmaLL]
o) Apddns 2wy oue woll ABuBlyd YL

juawIzaIge
JIOMBUIRL]
SILUBLIEAM
afusn Jz|nsal
pue £°¢ C10T
Jov [esodsi(
1985y pue
JUSLU2IND0 ]
Ajqnd

ap o (1vil
LUOI123S 0}
Aleuoo juaw
2218e/10enu0d
Jlosma el

B 0]

Ajddns jjo suo

woJaj aBuey)

ol
ol

snje)s
JUALIND)

g0
[eaong

asuodsay] JudwAS LUy

SINSS] A2y

uouidQ payien() jo siseq |

7707 *0€ 2unp papua aead 2y} 104
sjuRWR)eIg [eueuL] pue Joddy [Enuuy
eAuay Jo AJLI0YINY SUORENUNWUUOT)




LT

sanpuenb jo
ATURYD 10] IUIPUOASILIOd [IRWY - €] Xouuy

"SUWRY 21015 JO SU20ISI3A0
§23RINOOSIP  yorgm  (€) 79l  uonoasg
CI0Z 10y |esodsiq SIOSSY pue JUSWAINI0L]

agng Y 2ouedwos  wr o oses SIYLHTTL

(000°1 Jo peasuf
000°01) syoogatou  jends pue  sejaiquin
ayr jo sapnuenb 2yl woJoua ue sem aIa)
asnesaq Juatuledap J3sn 2 Yl UONRI[NSU0D
ur  pasuegy  sem Awuenb o asnenag
S1 SIUJ, "1921102 10U SI s3]l papueaq jo Addns
pue Sunuud ‘uSisap 107 Japuay I0J 0L0°LL6 1]

SUSY  Jo aunnpuadxa  pagoipur AL €7TT ]

AWEJ
iy

SnIBIS
LIy

jurog
[ea0.g

asuodsany Juawasuuey SINSS] L2
” .

uorurdQ payiend) Jo sisug |

ZZOT 0€ 2ung papua aead 31l Loy
SIS [BDURLL] puk Liodday] jenuuy
eduay jo AJLoYNY SUoNEAUNUINI0T)



S[ELI e IODEINPI AW NS0
pue ajeiodiod yo Swseyped pue Sunuwad
J0] SJUIUWIMDOP S$SV0UJ JIPUI], — 9] Xouuy

SAUNII0.1( UODEINPI
Jawnsuod pue detodiod jo Suiseyded pue
supuiid Joj SulSILIAPE JAPUA], - S XouUUY

‘(J2pua) 0] UOTJENALIL) JUUNIOP
Japual oyl ur pajeoipul se Jdeak ([) Quo
Jo pouad joenuod oyl Suunp padinbal uaim
pue se pajurd 2q 01 21am siisod pue sialf
‘S2INYO0I] UDIEONPS J2WNSU0d pue Aelodio)
QUL "SAUIIQESIP (I SUOSIS] PUB UIWOA
‘Yo J0J pealasal sem Japual AL S10T
sndny 71 Jo 91ep Suiso B yusm siagsod
pug SI9I[ ‘SAND0IQ  UOHEINPA  ISWINSUOD
pue ajesodion sy jo SuiSeyoed pue Sunuiad 1o]
paspisape AJUOWNY Ay ‘S10T AN ,FT VO T

910Z/ST0T ULl JUIWAINI0L] — P XOUUY

‘uejd Juawainooad 9107/S10T
S11 UT pajoajjal SB GLEGEE LT SYSY JO dqeLuisa

198png B Yyl S[RLIIEW UOHBINP2 JAWNSUODd

pue areiodion sj jo saoiadas Swisejond pue
Supupd amooad o1 pauueid s Auopny Yy 1L

Juatuied
1P2Ip
ysnoay; ¢
8t €89 S SYsH
pue 00&T6HT
6'SUSY Yrom
S2INY201q
[euonippe

Jo Apddng 1°¢°1

aq [jeys 1senbai ay) el sannbar yaym
¢10T7 1oV |esodsi(] 1955 PUB JUAWIAINI0A]
iy Jo (q)(T)en] uonoas oy Aenuod

seam siy ], “Ajpandadsal 9107 12quiaa(

€T PAIep LLZEL/TT/O00TI/AA PUB 910T
IsNBRY §1 patep 8SaH1/T1/900T//AN ON
IALON0 A JUSWAR] SPIA SINT201]
jeuomippe au Joj pred Apuanbasqns

sea sarpddns ay [, “Juawled 10211p yFnoay
S8 £89°C "SUSI Pue 00S TET 6 "SUSH
y1I0Mm s2anyo04q [euomppe Ljddns pue ajonb
07 sorjddns aaoqe ai1 03 2j0um AJLIOLINE

ay1 910T 4290100 g1 pue 9[0T [14dY

IS U0 1Y} 2]1B2IpUl UOIBLIOJUL A[GE[IBAR
‘10AMOH '88°9/ /€S "SUSY 01 JuajeAInba
04,C JO puoq eouewiiopad By 1eak

auo Jo poiad B 10) §EC°C/9°L "SYSY] JO WNS
JORIILOD © I8 §] (T J2QUIDAON Ll U0 WL}

2 01 papieme sainiooiq snouea jo A|ddns
10J JoBRNU0D B JO y0adsal Ul )9 7981
“sys3{ SapN[oUL OS[E 000 SOF'SE SUS3

Jo junowe 4L 000 80+ S6 SYSH Jo wnowe
ue sapn[out HQ°111°696°1 "SUSH JO 23y
sasuadya eiouad 24) SJUaLLIR]S [BIOUBULY
SJUSLUANEIS AU} 0 7] 210N Ul PIsO[ISIP 5

saanipo.g Jo
JUIWAINIO0AJ JAISSIONG Jwdpup) €1

aure.j
mLy

SNIEIS

N |

i
18204

asuodsay] Juswadeu]y

SANSS] 4]

uorundQy patjijeng) jo sisefq

70T *0€ 2unp papua aeak a1} 104
sjuamWa)e)g [RpuURHL] put Joday] enuuy
AU JO AJLIOYINY SUOHEIUNWWo)




'saied oMl 24 AQ 01 PaI2IU2 12BIIU0D A} (M
| Sulp uLsear SIY "CEF E89°C'SYSY pue pOs TeT”
GSUSY  Yuoa saangdoaqg  euoiippe  Addns
01 paywir] pueigl s;y pasanbar Quoyne

‘poIa Judwaa0ad 10211p J0U puE Japual
uado uw ydnomy 200U SEA S2INYDOIQ

SIYEL JLUN T} YIIAL PIT PURALT pue
ALIOYINY 3] UIPDAIAQ 1IBJUOD) — L[ XIUUY

"PRISpI0 UAYM
pue se awes ) jo Aaipp pue Suideyoed
“Bunurd uodn xXauue 2} Ul PAUIBIUOD T8I 1IUN
a1 uo paseq wins e raifddns ap Aed [jeys juaro
2yl Jornuod siyl Jo (q) | esnepa o) uensind
paiapual $a21A1235 21 104 (11} Saxe] Jo aalsnpout
0C°LECTCLO sysy Jo wns |eo) e a2ijddns
aup Ard [jeys a2 2y oenuod s Jjo (v )]
asne]D 07 uensmd parapual sa01A128 243 104 (1)
1Byl perels (Bulfia]) ) © W # 28NE[D 10RIU0D Y,
 OS°LECTCLO’L YSY JO 1502 |Bl01 © je elajew
app Jo Bupuud papleme sem pr7  pueigl
s/iN AloSapeo yoea o) 20ud  eannadwiod
ISOUL Yl paiajlo I2Ul WL Yl ‘UOnEnjEAd
uodn pue SuLly go pARINE IRpud) AL

S 9[0T 4390100 €[ pue 910Z My Yis UQ ¢

Jo Bunuud pue uBisep o] preme AL [

MEBT AU JO DRI Ul Seam AlIoIny

AU JRY) PUE (T SUN] YIHE papus 1eak oy
10} 0L9°798°¢ [ "5ysy Surjjelod amypuadxa
Jo Loudoad 2y wpuoo o) a[qissod uzaq
10U SBI| )1 ‘Sa0UBISWNAILD Al U] "Pazijinun
21015 Ul SWIA] [[US 212Mm CEOETET

"SUSY [MOA S2INLD0IG JUIJUO PIIYI ST 6E1
10 IR0 B IR P2[EAAI T/ [ (T JAqQUIR02(]

Ul 24| JEak auo 20015 2yl 01 1siA [eaisiyd v

‘2[qissod jou

51 1811 ssajun ‘suosiad 201y 1589] 18 O} UAALD
aq [[Bys pue uonnaduod aAnsag? amnsua

01 Aressaoau se suosiad Auew Se 0) U2AIS

asuodsay juawaseuey sanssy 42y |

worurdQ payiend) jo siseq |

7707 ‘0€ 2unp papua aeak ay Joyq
SIUQUIAIELS [BIUBUL] put Lioday [enuuy
eAuayy jo ALoPny SUoHEIUNWwe.)



W
-

mau (7) 01 uonNquUISIP pasealdul AUopnY
2Ul  CS[PUUBLD  UOHNQUISIP  SUIMO][0)
a1 ySnoayy panquusip are samysolq ayl T

suSiedwes uoneanpa summsuod sauodjsod
0) [eaoadde juowaSeury — 8] Xouuy

‘ponad Sulaauoios] a1 03 anp
Jeak (ouo) Aq paucdisod alam SIUSAR YORIINO
JoWNSUOY 241 “IAMOL  poInpaos u3aq
pey 1ey) uSiedwed aulj-uc ppys Syl Joj pasn

3q 01 pajurid 213Mm S2ANL204Q SWUO PIYD YL 1'TEL

pazijinun 21018
ut Sulk] [us
auem CT9'ETETI
"SUSY oM
Salnyaog auljuo
PITY2 ST GEL

Joeol 7el

‘patnbal uatja
pue Se Xauuy ay) ul paijiaads asor) o) Je[iwis
suoneorjiaads jo siasod pue sial]] ‘sanyooiq

| uoneonps  Jawmsuod  puw  awiodiod Yo

Aue afeyoed pue jund osfe [eys Jarddns 2y ]
., 1BLJ) S21B)S LOIYA JOBIIUOD 2] JO (q) [ asne|D)

ey
WL,

SNIUIS
JUALIND

o
B0y |

asuodsay] JUABRUBTA]

Sanss] Ay

uopuydQ payIEnd) jo siseg

ZZ0T FO€ dunp papua aeak oy} 104
sjuama) RIS [eduRuL] pue )oday [enuuy
vAuay[ 10 OILI0IPNY SUOHEIUNUIUIOD)




A

[l 09L | | 69| 0] -dv [ 810z
. ! - | IS - 61E -10 | FLLOT
[ 0 91
0 Tl . O0g | 6] RO LIOC
9L 1S | €0l Q0E'0F | "OF | €91 £l | /9102
f 0 91
|| 080w 00°| S| -few | 910t _
SOL1| ‘6l | oo0°col | sor | <ol “F | JEIOT |
_ 1 .
0 0ZE -y | +10T
(4% §3 # +0TE'TE 1€ | ovE "€l | JETOT
pa |om
g aap f
L1 10
ﬁ_ yo018 | sIq &
_ up | An pue | 0N
. A1 | Jue | paaadaraq | nd Q| awep
| uend) | np | Huuend dT| OdT| Ad
|
MO0 PRIBINGE] SB 0L C sBm
m L10T 2unf YiQg papua izak 12 uonjisod 32038 o] |

SALN0.A( JO HORMGLYSI(] — G XAUuy

S2OIJJO JUAWLIA0D) £JUN0T)
puR SANLAY 22N0SA-T  ‘SALIBIGIT [RUOTIBN
gAuRY ‘LIAAN pUB MWNSTY Ul $A2NJJO [RUCISal |

UL SIS | Jurog _

JWLL | ALY | 8204 asuodsay Juawaseuryy _ 5IUSST A3y _ uoturdQ payrjend) Jo siseg _

TZOT “0E 2Unp papua duak 3uf) Jo0,]
SJUAWA LIS [eRUBUL] pue Loddy jenuuy
AU JO QLIOYINY SUOEIUNUII,)



L

P3[|20UB JAPIQ) 4

"PanssI $21nY201q AP
112 PUe §10%/L107 Ad pa1onpuod usiedwied jo || aseld

0 0
79’ A
0| 9L1| 0T99LL | 9¥T 2101 a
$3
009 81
ame.y snyels | juog
QWL | JRLIn7) [e30,] asuodsay] JudwABrHEIA sanssy] Ay uotuidQ payieng) Jjo siseg

TT0T “0E unp papua 1eak 2y 10,
SIUAWAIL)S [BPUBUL] PUE LI0ddy [enuuy
gAuay Jo AJLI0INY SuopeIunuwo)




TTRI4]
uonezriogne sddng ay p apepdurdy uriog
UOHEZLIOINY SIAINDBINUELY - (7 X2uuy

i ey
2yl ul pauiwuod g 0} 2lam Jel sjuawasinbal
aiseq a1 w0 JuIHyUBiy o) seam 2dwes
ay1 jo asodind oy reapa) uoHEZLIOYINY JidY]
| JO SIBULIQT UL AR WYSIW SI2MoRINUBL
20uis  piom Ag  prom 3)dwes o yojeL
01 pey 11 1wyl Alojepuell 10U sem 11 1nq Jopaj
UOHBZLIOYINY  § J2IN0E[NURy 2 JO JBWIO]
__m_EEmm B SAEZ JUSLINJOP J2pUa) U '20IN0S
JqiBija 2y) wod] ame Spood eyl pue Japus)
o1 AJIISHa J12 Jo aoudpiae  AIBUSWNOOP
2 se ssaooud Buuepua 2yl Sunnp  Wwqns
01 peYy SIappiq 1B(] SWLIOJ AU JO U SBM U0,
UONBZLIOYINY  Si2anidgnuepy auf “(eouarsjal
JO 2SBS0l pAUOBNE 10] DIRpUBIS) ULIOJ

"ssa20.d Suriapua) 01 jueljdiuod s tappiq jo ued
@ JIuIgns pug 212(dwod 1snu S1appiq [je yoigm

UONBZLIOYINY SI2INIOBINURIA S SWIOF 81 JO aUQ 7'+

paijddns
syonpoad ayy
Jo Aueres uo

210W 01 J3aPU3] 3L} pIzmE 0] Papualul i)
181 pawe|dxa JustaSeuLil 21 YysSnoy)y

“iaanaegnuelt ay) Aq paajueiens s1jonpoid
2y Jo Append) 213y SIUALNo0p IpLs)

ay ur parjioads Jana)wio] voneZLIoYINY

S [20MaRInuRy prepuels ayl jo saed

ur sjonpoid 2y Jo AJuBLiEm UO IILLIB[OSIp B
PEL Y211 J121)3] UOHRZLIOYINE J3INI08]nURL
e patoene Jaijddns s 1ey) pajeasal
SPI0J2T D[QE[ILAR JO UOIEUIUEXS “I3AMOL]

"SIUOU (€)2au1y) pue sieak (7) omy

Jo pouiad g 10] SnaA-13UR J0J S33) [BAdUAL
[enuue I0] O L09 ‘SYSH PUB SIUBLURILIEW
algapaey JaIndwod [enuue Jof 008+t
'sysy ‘sianduwog jo uonepjusur pue Ajddns
10] SEAv [AFCEDTCS TSYSY YDA JO N0
S2UILAD 22UN0SAI-T PUE S|OOLS 0 sindwod
Jo Apddns soy uing e ol pred L7 0C08¢
'SUST S3pn[aul os[e (00 988°C6 SUSH JO
JUNOWE 2] "UOTETIGO 22IAIIS |BSIAILN JO
10adsar ul QOO‘98ECE SYSH JO UNOWE R SI
T1 AON J2pun OO 117696°1 'Sy Jo amsy

SWLIOJ PIBPUEIS 2ARL SIUSWNIOP JIPUD) PIEPUEIS UOIBZLIOYINY sasuadxa eaual au} Ul papn[our ‘uonIppe uf
A [y cSwoyny  A1oienSay  UIWAIN00I] SI2IMARINUBY . -
m Angqng  Aq  podofassp  Japull  piepuwls ayy §24JUDD) IIN0SIY 7 PuE
Al sasn ssacoud Funzpuay s1 ul QUOYPNY AL 11 U0 IBWIB[asig [#'1| Seoyas o) saapndwod jo {ddng ]
AWE.LJ NI o g " __
Wl | juaaan) [eaog asuodsay juswadeueyy | sanssy A2y uorurdQy patpieng) jo siseq

TTOT “OE 2Unp papua auvak ) 10,
SJURWAIWS [RIDUCHL] put Joday] jenuuy
eALY Jo AJLI0YINY STONENUNUIO)



paposse 1o] Sunsanbar 90z yate YiL pajep
1an12] epia Ajuloyinyy A1018[nBay JUILLSIN0L]
aijgng @y ySnonpy juiepdwios B paaradal
Auoypny ] spiq A Jo ssauaalsuodsal
-uoll 10] suoseas pafelep osje  sjuedioned
njssaoonsun 2yl 0}  SI2)I]  uoHednou
YL 9107 Alenuel 87 poIEp SIaNa] JpLa uop
| sea sjuedionaed widq. 01 SI2NA] UONBRIINON T°TF'1

lapuay
0}
19U} 1Y) JENJEADL uon
0] UOISIIPP 2IPIWWOD JIPUI], — [T XdUUY E_E.:
iy
SILA=[JUR J0] S22] [BMAUI [enuue O] JUnaie ur pai "PALLUeDY aq Jou pnoo
Suieq QOO°LO9 SYSY PuUE 20UBUIAUIBLL IRMPIEY Joads L107 aunf gg papud teak ayi 1o} [LTLLESS
Jamdwoa jenuue 10) N8 FE6 T sysy ‘siandwod s10] ‘sysy jo ainypuadxa jo feudoid
Jjo uone|esul pue Ajddns 10 §9°1LFCE0°CE i) ay) pue me| aUj Jo yoraiq U si ALYy
sys™ BuIaq ‘g0’ | LT LLS'SS SYSI] JO wns Iapud) o) A1 ayy “Apusnbasuo)) 10 (§) 2AL) 2y ||e
2101 ® JB 20Em1jos pue sijnduwiod urejuieu BIUOD popieAve sem J1a1[ddns aaoqe ay) se 3sed alj)
pue [pesuw ‘Kddns o1 10vnU0d Syl 10§ 1QONIEN 510] 10U SEA S IOAIMOH "$10] (S) dAY [#103 JO
0SOD-0198L X0 O'd JO Suonnjog ssauisng (©) N0 (€)a2111 259M JSPPIQ 2UC AUE 0} papiesme
() 0 21944 1Y) §10] JO Iaqunul wnuIxew
pajeaSaju] wiapojy S/N 0 Jopull 3} papieme anly oy} “SOOIAIOS PUE SPOOS JO AIOAT|SP A1 1021JE
D1 oYL -uomeolpnipe ucy Sumpls WHOE S . few je sauafjeyo paousiiadxa Jappiq
ur DL 3y 0} pawasaxd pue aUOp SeA UOTIEN[RAD [|e pa o[BS  1euy) Juaae oy ul j9efoid axmua At
21 AU, TUOIIW 7 "SYSY 24ES 01 sem ALoyIny pieme 01 yoeqias aqissod Aue Jo ysi 3Y3 SZILIUIW
i 2} Wy uUQ 0] papieme  sem Japus) 3] SEM 0] 12pIO Ul SanI[Iqesip M suosiad
J1 Kauowr 1o anjea JOj SUOSBI BUNID UOHEN]EA SE]| pue pnok ‘uawom 21 03 saunuoddo
-a1 a0y Joded a2y pauelep DL PICOS UL I'TET | ddng Tl a1y Supu2ixa Jo Aem © 52 1appiq 2uo uBy]
aweay smels | Jued
JWlL | judrng [ea0g asuodsay] JudWASEULIA SINSS] Ay uoupdQ payijeng) Jo siseg

ZZ0T “0g 2ung papus aeak 21y d04
SIURWA) LIS [ERUBUL put Joday] [enuuy
gAY JO AJLIOIPNY SUOHEIUNIIULOD)




suoneayoads penuod oyl Jod
SE pajjelsul pue paiaalfep adam siandwos Yl 71

fuopny L10)ensay
MRWRIMD0LJ  djqng 0] Sjusmndop
A} BuIpAeALIo] 2dudpuodsario]) - £ Xouuy

'ss2004d
uonepawzjdun  sepuar syl paddois seasu
| Auoyny  L1oienSay  JuawaIndold  arjqng

ay} pue ALOYINY 3 01 ¥oLq palinial e
2124 SJUAWNAOP ], 9[0T YR 91 parep
Jap2] apia AJOYINY A1018N5ay JUSLWAMD0L]
o11gngd 2yi o1 asuodsar v paji AIOMNY YL €T

*S]UIWNI0P J3pud) 1of 15anbaua
ALIONY JUIWALINIGL] [qng - 7T Xuuy

depull 2yl o1 Sungar sjuswinoop |

ey | snElg o g
awry, _ Jua.LIy | [ed0y asuodsay] juawaseueyy | SINSS[ A3Y] | uotuidQ pagiend) jo siseq |

: TTOT *O€ Ul pIpua Juad 21} d0,
SIHIWIEIS [edueuL] pue Joday [enuuy
BAUDY JO AJMOINY SUONEIUNUILOT)



o1

ug spiodg jo Aurapedy elua 3q 0) seam Buipuny 2y) Jo uonez|un

23433 EH:WHMG H:am“ doo)) W mM ” - E_VM Ay quatua13e a1p) 01 Sulposoe faling

‘saned

. i 9102 0M] 31} USamIaq Juawaide 1ad se suoneuop

TesA ul spodg jo Awapedy BAUSY y3 yim aupy 4o sjueis Ay JoJ parunoase o (ejueje])

diysiosuods 21} Jo [eamauar syl paudis Suoyny qno [[eqroo} ay) jo syodar eroueul

Ay “Apuanbasqng awiweiSosd  euepe], pue SUINai AU pagiliqns jou seif suods Jo

D 241 JO JUIWITRUBW AU} JAA0 JOO) ‘p|OT ek Awopeay BAUY a3 ‘lAsmO} wnuue Jad

ur paresodioour ‘suodg jo Awapeoy efuay 2yl 1T 000°000°ET "SYSY 18 6107 @ 9T unf woay

1031J2 pim 5194 [RIdURLI] 2211 JO poiad e

10J 000000 69 "SYSH JO Wns [2)0) 10} Emm

i . ARJA 1[)6 UO Pamaual 197e] sesm Juaiasise

244130 JUIWIAITE :azﬁww_w%u_ - vrmmuwwﬂﬁ AL "TLOT Sunf YT JO 18P JUSUISIUSLLILLIOD

£ Yy ‘siead 22y 10§ Jeak 1ad (S E9L L]

'8 0 1500 B 18 SUY pug 2inj[n

€10T  awA - TI0T WA pouad ‘spodg Jo ._MMM_.._“_E aly :m_uouﬁm.ﬂﬂmnﬁ._mwaw

SUL ML Ao 24). PUE AH.OINT] UsRseq  sea A paysijqeisa wed) |[eqioo] sioq Awapeay

10ERUeD [eul oy, osuods sy se Auoyny 2y \US[B UINOA [BUOHEN Ay Josuods 0]

01 suedal 2y} Jo uorssiugns atp 1oj ajqisuodsas BAuY JIIINL PUB AJLUONY 24 U9aMm)aq

sem pue sunueidoxd 2yp paSeuew JgOINN TIT WaWwaIde Z107 sunf YIigz Jo ousijung

e uo sem diysiosuods ay r_m.hEu_.._muM Hw_u_m 1

; 3 MO A [BUCITEN 21 JO dISIOSUOUs sU1aq

. Lol A= gpRaers 000°000'EZ SUEDESopy os1o 000955

Awpeay BAU2Y 01 pauuojsuen 1e] Awpesy alam spodg SIS} JO JUNOWE 3L *A1[1qISUdSaI [E120S

2Rl nejg  Jeuonepn 21 saomdsne A Jo Awapeay a1210d100 Jo adsar ur cmmmm.m 1% .E_mw jo

1apup)) sUy 2y pue aamny ‘stodg jo Ansiuy eduay] Jo JUNOLIR UR ST 7] 200U Japun [ [1°696°T 'SYs™

Ayl pue (YHSSHA) UOHRIDOSSY SPEAH S[00L2S Spaodal [BloueLL 10 231 sasuadxa [e1auad 2y Ul papnou]
Aepuooag  eAuoy 49DINN Jo  uonwiadooo ) 1By} MOUS

usamiaq swwesford se paemul sem wuRRL Jd  °T°T 01 20UPIAD ON [T aanjpuadxy J0) PAIUROIILU[)

NueIj snjels juod
awiy | juddany) jB20y] asuodsay] JudwRSeIEy SINSS] A2Y uonnidQ patppeng) jo siseq

ZT0T “DE 2unp papuad auak ayj 10
S1UAIR} LS (B UBULY pue Lioday jsnuuy
2AUIY JO ALI0IINY SUODENUNUIT0)



[LI2UID) I0JIPIY 1[] JO DYJO Aq 133
PUE SAIBIDOSSY BUIUIMIY Aq paypne A[[epiur
21240 SJUIUIIILIS [BRUBUL] 3L — 97 Xouuy

elBURD)  I0UpNY A Jo 820 2yl
Lg paupne Apuaiund puy supodg Jo AWApedy
giuay Ag owweiSoxd 2yl Jo JudwRIeLRW
ayl Jo Jaac2yEl uodn  SIUBIUNO2DY  OIjgnd
paljilia]y eyouamy £q Ja18] pue JIDINN Japn

| awwreaSoad v se paypne Ajeniun ses wiue(e] o4

FlE

"AInsear]

[euoneu aip pue Ansiunjy waied augy

wiedj AJLIoINe oI £ [7 “Atenuel (g uo
painouot] sea jsanbal YL "Z005EYETR 1001
"ON JUNODDE Yueg BIOF HWE 1B UN0dIe
Mmau e o) Juswaaise sy Jad se yueg Aunbg
1 5S900S09TO "ON N0 PO 2yl Wolf
‘(eueje L) qn(a [|Bq100} 21 10} 000'000°ET
"SUSY] JO JUDU[BISUI PUOIDS 3] JO AUBPILIL
ur a8ueya e 10y Sunsanbar ([Z)E1/V/SVH
"Op “Joy 1eN9f yinoay) eAuay| jo

AJLIOUINY UOIIEDIUNLILIOD) [BI3UaL0) JOIAI]
01 2104m suods Jo Awoapedy eAuay| JoJ
s901A12S 21810d107) 1010a11(] FuljoR Y1 9T
J2QUIAda(] €] U0 PRAOU SBAL 11 UOTIPPE U]

*MIIADI IIPNE 0] pajieAR

sea Jpne Aue 01 pajoalgns aiam suodg

Jo fwapeay pAUY JO SPI0dAL [RIoUBLL]

3L} VLI MOLS O] 2JUPIAS OL TAIMOH
22102 s} Jo ssa20.1d J1pne ue 03 SpIodal

auy; 192lgns pue jusweaise of Juensind

ui sprods Jo Awpeay eAuay Aq paulejuiew

spaooai 1pafoad Jatpo pug Fununode |

[eraueuy Aue 10] awin AUe 720 5] pajepuetl
0s]e seAL AJL0YINY AU ], [elauaD) Joupny
ay1 £q JIpNE [BLIAIXA [BNUUE UE 0] pajdalgns

mwe.lj
QULL

SIS
Jua.LIn)

jutog
2204

asuodsay] Jusuasvuuy

sanssy 433

uoruidQ pajijeng) jo siseg

7707 *0€ 2unf papua auad ai) 104
UMW) LIS [RRUEUL] pus Joday [pnuuy
AU JO AJLIOWINY SUONEIHNWW0D)



JjudwdIse uoneradood
23 0} [ CON wWnpuappy — §7 Xauuy

JUIRAITY a2yl Jo (0 asne
[[I 22y 3yl 1ad se ‘spelap JuUnoaoe jueq jo
aBue(o a1 asiusooal 0] Juawaaify uoneiadoo)
aup pasiaal saiged  ylog  C‘Aeuonippy TITT

vlog muep

31a Junodde ue jo suiuddo 2y Suracadde ) mEmcMz:H m%
sajpnug Jeoyg  wuee = xauu ‘finsead papLa 1894 Sty 10§ JUM020G S[ikg BI04 1
P BERELSPTILE L v . mrr 01 pauajsuen gp0‘000°cg 'sysy suljjzio}
. - dd _, HEN amypuadxa jo Gaudosd 21 uiguo
viog nwef jo quawedefus  Jo  jeaocadde AL pue Apsiui 01 ajqissod 12aq Jou sy 31 “Apuanbasuod)
Y1 Suldajal pleag 2 Jo sanuy “Kloyny juared
3y 01 pajieAr eUR[E], D JO JUAWATRUB woy Aroyine "Spuny 2y Jo J2jsues) au Jo suy pue
2L RHEPUELLE 511 1M 20UBPIO2OE Ul BI1Og N0 JUNo22e amng ...mu._D_nHm Jjo h.ﬂm_EE ) pue .mu_‘ﬁo_n_m
HLWEL uomIIsul Supjueq Jatoue Jo juswasesus jueq agueyd Jo Awapeay eAUIY AJHOU JOU PIp BAUSY
Jo (eacidde pojuetd pieog BWUBEL D L [TT ojisanbai Y 7T JO ALIOYINY SUOHEITUNWIIO.) “Iayln,]
we.ay smels | jutog _
Wiy | Juanan)) | [edog asuodsay] jusmaSeuryy sanssy £9)] uoiuidQ pauipeng) jo siseg

TZ0T “0€ dunp papud Jeadk 21 10,
SHUAMDIL)S [EUBUL] pue Joday [enuuy
eAUY JO ALIOYINY SUONEIUNMU))




L

SLIY 2]} pUE 20U
sspaodg Jo Ansinpy Ayl 0} uapuodsariod
[esauad diystosuods viuge] D4 — 6T XUUY

| resauar  digsiosuods 2yl Jo jUIWdUNOUUR
| [PIOLJO 21} JO UQISED20 32U} 01 pajiaul Os[e
| pue diysiosucds 000°000°69 SUSH A JO [BMIURL
a] JO pauMojul s SHY Ayl puz amjnd
| ‘suodg Jo Ansiungy 2 ul Aeeaosg puqe) Ay ['¢T

spunj
21 JO Jajsuen
au Jo suy pue
amyn) ‘suodg
Jo Ansiuny
ai pue suodg jo
Auapeay eAuay
Ajnou jou pip
AoIny 3yl €'

aweay sSnjeIg
awiy | juaLIn)

|
Juiog |

(B0, | 25u0dsaY JUIMIBLULTA

sanss] dan]

uoraidQ pagipend) jo siseqg

ZZ0T '0E 2Unp papud dead i) J04
SjUAIES [eduRUl] pue poday [pnuuy
pAudy JOo LIOPINY SUOLEIIUNWII0D)



1y
W

saomosal a1jqnd

0} a5aeyo Jodoad B Jou sRAL PUE PALLLLEUOD

aq 10U p[NOD £ [T AUnf ,0€ PIpPU2 Jeak

a1y} 10] 000001 "SUsY Surjjeior aimipuadxe
J0 faudoad pue meT 2 Jo yoralq ul ses
juawafeuew 2y ‘Apuanbasuo) “Ajdde jou
Op Al Xauue ul papiacid jou 218 JeL) Jjauaq
1a3o Aue ey sapiacad 1B T aBed e

(1) ydesSered A[ xauue 20jAIaS JO SUONIPUOD
puE SULI2} UG SAUAPIND “F0T LUSAON #T
patep CH/IIVV T T/6E VIO Ja4 1Bl
10 suoisia0ad 0 AIZIUOD AUOP SeM SIY ],
‘jeaoidde Linseal] [euoieN pue ANSIULy
juaaed JnoLim apew sem 000001 T "SUs
Suimor Suiddoys seunsuy) 1o justiAed
2UL 000 19T Lir "SUS3] JO [1ouna L10sIApe

‘|eacidde [BSI2AIUN Japun T AJON Ul papniaul

Ainseal], S1 UM (00°006 SUSH YHOM SIHINOA

[BUOITEN Fuiddoys seunsuy) uaAIS a1am SIQUIAW

pue ANSIU [12unoy) A10SIAPY 0[S JesIaAllf]

sjuamied aaoadde 03 epuRw pivog Uo Juzaed M“_.ﬂw Mﬂﬂmﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬂaﬁ%ﬂﬁmﬁm“_m__ﬁ_wnw Mhﬁwm_
(Y 6T s ST O - e Xetke M"Mo__‘:mﬂ 000°00T°1 "SYSYI papnjoul os[e 000959’
000°001°C ‘SIS JO JUNOWE 2y ], "dIgjjam pieoq

pieod M SU Jo poadsar ul gpO‘9so°T "SUSH Jo Junotie
10 SI3GUAW 1) pue AUoyINY iyl Jo jjeis ai jo el UE S1 O 910U JpUN 0Q0°1 1Z'L “SUSH
yoadsar ur SaBieyD JRII0 PUE SSOUEMD[|R ‘SLIB[ES Fuiddoys o am31) sasuadxa s J0]0211p Y] Ul pIpnjou]
aip Jo awked auy so) apiacad 0y ajepuell € Sel SEWISLIYD) JO §10J02.1(] 0} SpudwWARJ AB[nSL] T°¢

pieog 211 Jo () (7) 61 uonoss ‘7107 WY VoI ['1°1°E

wawfed 2yl 1'1'E

sasuadxy] S.0122.01(]

eIy
L,

snjely
jua.LINy

jutog
[eo0g

asuodsay jusmaseuey

sanss[ £33]

uorundQ pajijeny) jo siseq

7Z0T ‘0 2ung papud 1eak ay) 104
sjuawWale)g [epueun] pus Joday [enuuy
eAUY Jo ALIonY SUORENUNWUo’)



Ys

ssaooud  umoo 2yl jo swoome oy
| Bunteame 13151521 1958y AU UL PAIBISUIL aq [[BYS
S}9SSE QU] CUONEBUILLIDIDP UN0D AUl Bunieme

JMfBA UMOD UMM 2y 07 Juaeainba junouie
AR pauoisiacad  juBlUSSRUBY UOHNEY B SV T'1TC

J01JJO WOJ [BAOUII

swsuaqeya sury readdy Jo jane) — 1¢ xauuy

‘Tesodsip

10} SAvdl pue sdoide) ayy 1240221 03 ajqissod

10U Sea 11 20u3y 1nod ul Suipuad s1orapgew oy
puE I2]SN0 113 PASU|RYD SIAqIAL pIeog 2L 1 ['TE

201d
aatasat v dn
125 01 201id
1ML (B
A} Junoaoe
DU 28] 10U
PIp [esodsiq

I'T¢

‘PAWITIUCD Q)

10U PINOD £ [(T 2Unf () papua 1eak ay) 1o}
0H< 79 sysy Jo fendosd oy pue mej sy
JO yoeang ul sea Ajuioyine 2y ‘Apuanbasuony
. SWIA paparog o)

Jo anjeA 1a3ieL (Bl mo[2q 2011d aqeidasoe
wnuiuIu a1 aq [jeys yorym 201rd oatasal

e dn 12s J[eys Madxa [eoruys2) oy} Sulop os ur
puz 2011d 124BW (B2 3] JUNODOE OJUT SINEL)
121 [esodsip 10] swayl 102lqns oy Jo uadxa
weasjal e Aq gerdordde ataym 1odas
[BDILILD3] B Q) [[BYS 2421} JY] SIS [DITM
C10T 10V [esodsi(] 1955y DUE 1UAWAINI0L]
aqng syl Jjo (g) $91 uonsag 03 LU
QUOP 5eM\ §12SSE PIBS JO SuiasiiQ) "s1010alip
JULIOY 24} 0] 2Np S24Y ,S101D2I1P A1

Ylia 1951JO 2IaMm £6C71 79 "SyYSs 03 Suijjeion
[1B 08T "SUSH JO anjea jooq jau yua sdoyde|
(1) U221N0] pue (g "Sysy JO anfea yooq
12 yna spedr (0]) uey ‘SIS 91 sysy jo
ANjRA Y00q 12U Yiim Sped! (§) 2uil 166994
'SUSY JO anjea yooq jau yia sdojde) syoog
2B (6) 2uIu AT "S101220p |BIPIAIPUT 21}
01 pasadsip £jeinpasoid-un aram siowaap
Jawog 2yl Aq prey sqydl pue sdoidej
}0oqaBw FUIpNioul s1asse AJLoyIny ey
pR[BAA3d PIOIAL A[qR[[BAR JO UOIIBUIWIRN]
S10J2201(] 0} SAVJI pue sdoyde|
HOOFIBTAL JO [esodsi[ 1enSaaay 7'¢

ey SIIBLS
AW | judaany |

juto g
[Ba0 |

asu0dsay JuawaseuLyy

SIUSS] A3y

uotuidQy pagipend) jo siseg _

TTOL “0€ 2unp papua avad ayl 4o
SJUAWIELG |edueulf pue Joday] jenuuy
BAUIY Jo AJLIOYINY SUOHEIUNRUITO))



LE

pIEOg A1 JO UBLLITELYD)

2 L _.

AR .mr.m;.\r.u\._.._..‘.t__.___w.mm - e(]

. jeruaDA0I9211(]

‘UONESNSAAUL JAYlng
10] UOISSIWIUOY) UoNdNLIodNUY pue SYIE A1) 03 Janeu
2y NLugns 0] AJLOYINY Y JO U0ISIOap A} M paalde
SIAQUWIDW AL, ‘610 1SNSNY 9 U0 SUNIIW IPIWILOT
JUsUIIS2AU] A[qhd 24} 01 pajuasaid sea 20UIPIAI AL

eAusy Jo
£LI0UINY SUOTEDIUNLILIOD) S A YSUIS WEMS

ssyuawAed pewajuod parndsiq

UIR.I]
awig,

snIBIg
Ju.LIND)

o

25u0d59}] JUIWABLUEIA

§anss] £33]

uonidQ pagien() Jo siseq |

1630,

7707 “0E 2unp papua 1ead a1 104
SHUAWAIVIS [BPURUL] pUB Jioday] [enuuy
gAUDY JO ALI0INY SUOREIIUNWUIOT)




Communications Authority of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended Junc 30, 2022

APPENDIX I1: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY
During the year under review, the projects implemented by the Communications Authority of
Kenya were [ully funded through internally generated revenue. There were no projects funded

by neither state corporations nor development partners,

APPENDIX II: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

During the Financial year 2019/20, the Communications Authority of Kenya did not reccive

APPENDIX IV: RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT
ENTITIES
During the year under review, the Communications Authority of Kenya did not receive any

transfers from other government entities, therefore records of the same are not provided.



